
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
November 19, 2012 

Executive Session - 6:00 P.M. 
Regular meeting -7:00 P.M. 
Municipal Meeting Room 

Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Executive session – Personnel matter to discuss the Town Manager’s evaluation per 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A), Economic Development regarding a TIF for Molnlycke per 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) and consultation with legal counsel per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E). 
 
Roll Call  
 
Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Public Comment:  
 
Correspondence:   
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Financial Update 
 
(b) Council Committee Updates  
 
(c) Update from People Plus 
 
(d) Update on Police Station project 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  The two public hearings regarding General Assistance maximums and the 
ordinance to exempt active duty military from paying excise tax on vehicles will be on the 
December 3rd meeting. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
119. The Town Council will consider adopting the “Resolution Amending the 2012-13 

Budget Appropriating $174,500 from the Unassigned Balance of the General Fund to 
Fund the School Department’s Facilities Master Plan – Phase II,” and will take any 
appropriate action. (Manager) 

ACTION 
 



2 
 

120. The Town Council will consider approving the “Agreement for the Exchange of Real 
Estate” between the Town of Brunswick and the Brunswick Development Corporation 
for properties at 28 Federal Street and the corner of Pleasant and Stanwood Street, and 
will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

ACTION 
 
121. The Town Council will consider designating additional “Drug Free Safe Zones” for 

Brunswick parks and recreational facilities, and will take any appropriate action.  
(Manager) 

ACTION 
 
122. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for December 3, 2012, for a 

Molnlycke TIF, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 
ACTION 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of November 5, 2012 
 

 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 

COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  
THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 

(TDD 725-5521) 
 

  



3 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda 

November 19, 2012 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
Executive session – Personnel matter to discuss the Town Manager’s evaluation per 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A), Economic Development regarding a TIF for Molnlycke per 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) and consultation with legal counsel per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E). 
 
Suggested Motion: 
Motion to go into Executive session for a Personnel matter to discuss the Town Manager’s 
evaluation per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A), for Economic Development regarding a TIF for 
Molnlycke per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) and consultation with legal counsel per M.R.S.A. 
§405(6)(E). 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Financial Update:  Manager Brown will update the Council on the Town’s financial 

picture to date for the fiscal year.  Copies of financial reports will be posted online, but 
are not included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(b) Council Committee Updates:   Councilors with information on the Committees they 

are involved with will share information with the Council and public. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
(c) Update on activities of People Plus:  Stacy Frizzle, Executive Director, will provide a 

report on the activities of this group. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
(d) Update on Police Station project:  Manager Brown will provide this update, including 

information on the results of the bids. 
 

Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
119. This item is for the adoption of the “Resolution Amending the 2012-13 Budget 

Appropriating $174,500 from the Unassigned Balance of the General Fund to Fund the 
School Department’s Facilities Master Plan – Phase II.”  The charter required public 
hearing to amend the budget was held at your last meeting and the appropriate time 
has passed so the Council can now make this budget amendment.  Phase I of this 
project was completed as of June 12, 2012, and the School Department sought 
proposals for the second phase of the planning process, with an agreement made with 
PDT Architects.  Copies of the draft resolution, a memo from Manager Brown, a 



4 
 

memo from John Eldridge, and a letter from PDT laying out the scope of work are 
included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt the “Resolution Amending the 2012-13 Budget Appropriating 
$174,500 from the Unassigned Balance of the General Fund to Fund the School 
Department’s Facilities Master Plan – Phase II.” 

 
120. This item is to approve the Agreement for the Exchange of Real Estate between the 

Town of Brunswick and the Brunswick Development Corporation for properties 
located at 28 Federal Street and on the corner of Pleasant and Stanwood Streets.  The 
BDC board approved the agreement at the recent meeting.  At the time of closing, the 
Town will acquire the Stanwood and Pleasant Street properties, and the transfer of 28 
Federal Street to the BDC will occur at the time the Town Offices move to the 
McLellan Building in 2014.  Copies of a memo from Manager Brown and the 
agreement are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve the “Agreement for the Exchange of Real Estate” between the Town 
of Brunswick and the Brunswick Development Corporation for properties located at 28 
Federal Street and on the corner of Pleasant and Stanwood Streets. 

 
121. This item from the Police Department creates more “Drug Free Safe Zones” in 

Brunswick around town parks and recreational facilities, adding to those that were 
enacted in 2009.  These zones enhance the penalty of a drug trafficking charge if 
arrested for these activities in these zones.  Currently, state law designates areas around 
schools as Drug Free Zones.  If the Town wishes to do this for other areas, the Council 
will need to establish the zones.  Copies of a memo from the Police Department, with a 
list of the parks, sections of Title 30-A, and a copy of the sign are included in your 
packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to have the Police take the necessary steps to designate the following locations 
as “Drug Free Safe Zones”: Anniversary park, Barnes Landing, Bay Bridge Landing 
Wetland Park, Cox Pinnacle, Crimmins Field,  Greater Town Commons, Longfellow 
Playground, Maquoit Bay Conservation Land, Maquoit Landing (Wharton Point), 
Mere Point Boat Launch, Mill Street Canoe Portage, Pejepscot Recreation Area, 
Perryman Village, Prince’s Point Landing, Recreation Center, Sawyer Park, 
Simpson’s Point Landing, Town Commons, and Wildwood Field. 

 
122. The Town staff has been working with representatives from Molnlycke Health Care to 

develop a proposed Tax Increment Financing (TIF) program to assist Molnlycke 
establish and expand their business at Brunswick Landing. Copies of the draft 
Development program and draft credit enhancement agreement (CEA) are included in 
the Council packet. 

 
  



5 
 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to set a public hearing for December 3, 2012, for a Molnlycke Health Care to 
develop a proposed Tax Increment Financing (TIF) program to assist Molnlycke 
establish and expand their business at Brunswick Landing  

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
(a) Approval of the Minutes of November 5, 2012:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 

packet. 
 

Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
IN COUNCIL PACKETS 
BUT ON LINE 
 
 



 
 
 

11/01/2012 08:29    |Town of Brunswick |PG     1
jhenze              |OCTOBER 2012 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 04
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 General Government                 
_________________________________________

 
11000 Administration      443,895     443,895.00     145,552.50      38,112.17         325.00     298,017.50   32.9%
11100 Finance Department      676,347     676,347.00     192,532.31      50,132.96         125.78     483,688.91   28.5%
11150 Technology Services Dept      309,447     309,447.00     135,557.97      43,533.92      40,819.70     133,069.33   57.0%
11200 Municipal Officers      127,615     127,615.00      16,706.49       3,708.00            .00     110,908.51   13.1%
11220 Municipal Building      185,178     185,178.00      38,620.23      10,111.73       1,054.00     145,503.77   21.4%
11230 Risk Management      429,050     429,050.00     147,205.56      29,451.33            .00     281,844.44   34.3%
11240 Employee benefits            0            .00     -62,228.93     -14,074.03            .00      62,228.93  100.0%
11250 Cable TV       66,983      66,983.00      20,208.06       7,802.23       2,963.88      43,811.06   34.6%
11300 Assessing      279,406     279,406.00      76,523.70      17,833.52       2,560.00     200,322.30   28.3%
11600 Town Clerk & Elections      352,539     352,539.00      95,467.24      26,789.07      -2,865.00     259,936.76   26.3%
11900 Planning Department      443,416     443,416.00     122,955.75      27,511.10            .00     320,460.25   27.7%
11950 Economic Development Dept       94,751      94,751.00      26,972.87       7,213.77         703.00      67,075.13   29.2%

 
TOTAL General Government         3,408,627   3,408,627.00     956,073.75     248,125.77      45,686.36   2,406,866.89   29.4%

 
 

20 Public Safety                      
_________________________________________

 
12100 Fire Department    2,944,930   2,944,930.00     867,108.97     226,694.95      14,554.34   2,063,266.69   29.9%
12200 Police Department    3,763,288   3,763,288.00   1,060,243.40     273,652.28     134,765.73   2,568,278.87   31.8%
12210 Police Special Detail            0            .00       9,616.17         721.13            .00      -9,616.17  100.0%
12220 Emergency Services Dispatc      715,702     715,702.00     201,647.83      50,969.67            .00     514,054.17   28.2%
12310 Streetlights      190,000     190,000.00      56,418.85      14,560.78            .00     133,581.15   29.7%
12320 Traffic Signals       31,600      31,600.00       4,250.93         777.11            .00      27,349.07   13.5%
12330 Hydrants      407,770     407,770.00      98,923.90      94,722.95            .00     308,846.10   24.3%
12340 Civil Emergency Preparedne        2,000       2,000.00            .00            .00            .00       2,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Public Safety              8,055,290   8,055,290.00   2,298,210.05     662,098.87     149,320.07   5,607,759.88   30.4%

 
 

30 Public Works                       
_________________________________________

 
13100 Public Works Administratio      412,725     412,725.00     116,901.97      30,448.56         300.00     295,523.03   28.4%
13110 PW General Maintenance    1,627,417   1,627,417.00     336,977.35      94,612.87     129,819.50   1,160,620.15   28.7%
13120 PW Winter Maintenance            0            .00            .00            .00      20,000.00     -20,000.00  100.0%
13130 Refuse Collection      583,765     583,765.00     132,322.10      48,360.30     272,390.60     179,052.30   69.3%
13140 Recycling      273,792     273,792.00      65,958.34      22,265.50     216,541.00      -8,707.34  103.2%
13150 PW Central Garage      724,623     724,623.00     199,087.48      70,597.57      32,339.50     493,196.02   31.9%

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

11/01/2012 08:29    |Town of Brunswick |PG     2
jhenze              |OCTOBER 2012 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 04
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
TOTAL Public Works               3,622,322   3,622,322.00     851,247.24     266,284.80     671,390.60   2,099,684.16   42.0%

 
 

40 Human Services                     
_________________________________________

 
14100 General Assistance      166,695     166,695.00      46,204.72       7,812.31       3,013.98     117,476.30   29.5%
14120 Health & Social Services        2,744       2,744.00            .00            .00            .00       2,744.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Human Services               169,439     169,439.00      46,204.72       7,812.31       3,013.98     120,220.30   29.0%

 
 

45 Education                          
_________________________________________

 
14500 School Department   33,491,029  33,491,029.00   6,209,881.23   2,275,839.99            .00  27,281,147.77   18.5%

 
TOTAL Education                 33,491,029  33,491,029.00   6,209,881.23   2,275,839.99            .00  27,281,147.77   18.5%

 
 

50 Recreation and Culture             
_________________________________________

 
15000 Recreation Administration      417,915     417,915.00     116,332.68      30,775.59            .00     301,582.32   27.8%
15050 Rec Buildings and Grounds      668,672     668,672.00     202,977.51      65,072.07      19,320.52     446,373.97   33.2%
15300 Teen Center        5,000       5,000.00       5,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
15310 People Plus       75,000      75,000.00      75,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
15400 Curtis Memorial Library    1,192,405   1,192,405.00     392,468.36      98,117.08            .00     799,936.64   32.9%

 
TOTAL Recreation and Culture     2,358,992   2,358,992.00     791,778.55     193,964.74      19,320.52   1,547,892.93   34.4%

 
 

60 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
16000 County tax    1,183,264   1,183,264.00   1,183,264.00   1,183,264.00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental          1,183,264   1,183,264.00   1,183,264.00   1,183,264.00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

70 Unclassified                       
_________________________________________

 
17000 Promotion and Development      161,558     161,558.00     128,653.04         201.89            .00      32,904.96   79.6%

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

11/01/2012 08:29    |Town of Brunswick |PG     3
jhenze              |OCTOBER 2012 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 04
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
17010 Additional School Assistan       10,000      10,000.00            .00            .00            .00      10,000.00     .0%
17020 Cemetery Care        3,000       3,000.00         500.00            .00            .00       2,500.00   16.7%
17030 Wage Adjustment Account       35,000      35,000.00            .00            .00            .00      35,000.00     .0%
17051 Longfellow School Building            0            .00      35,029.80      35,000.00     -35,000.00         -29.80  100.0%

 
TOTAL Unclassified                 209,558     209,558.00     164,182.84      35,201.89     -35,000.00      80,375.16   61.6%

 
 

80 Debt Service                       
_________________________________________

 
18010 2003 High School Refunding            0            .00     931,737.50     931,737.50            .00    -931,737.50  100.0%
18020 2006 CIP G/O Bonds      268,000     268,000.00     236,000.00     236,000.00            .00      32,000.00   88.1%
18030 2011 GO CIP Bonds      274,010     274,010.00     597,400.00     597,400.00            .00    -323,390.00  218.0%
18050 2010 Elementary School Bon            0            .00   1,334,670.26   1,334,670.26            .00  -1,334,670.26  100.0%

 
TOTAL Debt Service                 542,010     542,010.00   3,099,807.76   3,099,807.76            .00  -2,557,797.76  571.9%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   53,040,531  53,040,531.00  15,600,650.14   7,972,400.13     853,731.53  36,586,149.33   31.0%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

11/01/2012 08:32    |Town of Brunswick |PG     1
jhenze              |OCTOBER 2012 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 04
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                   ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 Taxes                              
_________________________________________

 
111190 41101  Property Taxes   32,744,478  32,744,478.00  33,176,980.09         577.68                   -432,502.09  101.3% 
111190 41103  Deferred Property Tax     -200,000    -200,000.00            .00            .00                   -200,000.00     .0% 
111190 41104  Tax Abatements      -75,000     -75,000.00      -6,694.22      -4,417.26                    -68,305.78    8.9% 
111190 41105  Interest on Taxes       76,000      76,000.00      29,847.22       2,136.15                     46,152.78   39.3% 
111190 41106  Tax Lien Costs Revenu       13,000      13,000.00      12,116.45            .00                        883.55   93.2% 
111190 41107  Tax Lien Interest Rev            0            .00      15,078.55            .00                    -15,078.55  100.0% 
111190 41109  Payment in Lieu of Ta      260,000     260,000.00      60,905.51       7,283.77                    199,094.49   23.4% 
111190 41198  Homestead exemption r            0            .00     293,057.00            .00                   -293,057.00  100.0% 
111190 41199  Miscellaneous tax adj       -4,842      -4,842.00            .00            .00                     -4,842.00     .0% 
111191 41110  Excise Tax - Auto    2,550,000   2,550,000.00     971,508.76     230,883.40                  1,578,491.24   38.1% 
111191 41111  Excise Tax Boat/ATV/S       25,000      25,000.00       2,894.80        -235.50                     22,105.20   11.6% 

 
TOTAL Taxes                     35,388,636  35,388,636.00  34,555,694.16     236,228.24                    832,941.84   97.6%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   35,388,636  35,388,636.00  34,555,694.16     236,228.24                    832,941.84

 
20 Licenses & Fees                    
_________________________________________

 
121111 42207  Passport Fees        8,000       8,000.00       1,800.00         675.00                      6,200.00   22.5% 
121111 42208  Postage Fees            0            .00         151.60          37.90                       -151.60  100.0% 
121111 42209  Passport Picture Reve        1,500       1,500.00         732.00         264.00                        768.00   48.8% 
121411 42100  Building Permits      100,000     100,000.00      45,391.77      24,703.43                     54,608.23   45.4% 
121411 42101  Electrical Permits       27,000      27,000.00      19,333.87       4,702.00                      7,666.13   71.6% 
121411 42102  Plumbing Permits       12,000      12,000.00       6,762.50       1,225.00                      5,237.50   56.4% 
121411 42103  Zoning Board Fees            0            .00          75.00            .00                        -75.00  100.0% 
121611 42200  Hunting & Fishing Lic        1,000       1,000.00         330.80          90.55                        669.20   33.1% 
121611 42201  Dog License Fee        2,302       2,302.00         200.00          54.00                      2,102.00    8.7% 
121611 42202  Vital Statistics       46,000      46,000.00      18,999.60       5,533.20                     27,000.40   41.3% 
121611 42203  General Licenses       24,230      24,230.00       2,985.00         325.00                     21,245.00   12.3% 
121611 42204  Victulars Licenses       22,875      22,875.00       2,200.00         150.00                     20,675.00    9.6% 
121611 42205  Shellfish Licenses       20,250      20,250.00         400.00          25.00                     19,850.00    2.0% 
121611 42206  Neutered/Spayed Dog L        4,210       4,210.00         330.00          94.00                      3,880.00    7.8% 
121911 42300  Planning Board Appl F       10,000      10,000.00      22,704.10       6,380.50                    -12,704.10  227.0% 
122121 42400  Fire Permits          900         900.00          50.00            .00                        850.00    5.6% 
122221 42500  Conc Weapons Permits          600         600.00         425.00         120.00                        175.00   70.8% 
123131 42600  Public Works Opening          500         500.00          24.00            .00                        476.00    4.8% 

 
TOTAL Licenses & Fees              281,367     281,367.00     122,895.24      44,379.58                    158,471.76   43.7%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      281,367     281,367.00     122,895.24      44,379.58                    158,471.76

 
30 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 

http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=V/jC9SQTFO3tH3i3xHvEm5EEFgjdrhPzv0kaoTWQbqNc/eS1ATHmGAnDhFJkOvUe&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nKdbD2SurP4nQFaHdN3lDEsmnFcwBU%2BAYYZrTzNLq3L/MMLD%2BfVqJpxUzJxMivts&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=/f2G0gfj1yOTsqZM38b03sZs8R8%2BgpsKI8Vv1NKzaAik3VOoIvVqJrHDmlB2WZm9&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NGd5WgCTyMDMGrj8ltNoW1doB5EQVsGSW7P4Dmo6N5CFBsdKu/5KZknw0FAPugyH&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=eqrbTueA3mP1laetA9tAWNVV47ss1UheibUeUCQenZSuN2kqmabE8CmlCW1TstrZ&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=m1zla4NyNCNAH5h2tP7SiAkeV7Avx%2Btvw1TWtHLk8L7xGGXIwyDeNr2e1FEJkZ6X&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mRUHH9MzDTE080cwwgaSchGY%2BZWgFd4Sn2uWnkBzAFjd5EsfJBEnae53hPEMuvNA&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Imzm9YuZncKzVV1GZFYuZL7/Z5A0j63kyK3DLRw969YbsZlDhbG2kGs5Voivj1b4&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9jNTYV8VJGqPQjRviYup3T4gsNMVgOvD3aKdT/qs5wXiJkf2ZKtGam1XbKU3scCI&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1oNGZ1XFVopTiEplJxc2FYuN0GpWsfbygSmZB7U7Q6nhg4c%2BZ65D0HZVbyOcEmvg&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UJRNE9oLXUd892yD7MdaDZ3iFD0CZBeHKrtsV7DVXDDkHyKFUYdBVns5cGv4UNyI&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Knw43tEDYM6icWK7GuNbJqdMi5lAGNdYSrwxhYVkx9IFr41s7wUtLgFVag2pibLX&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2oAFEUTzfZYVUCIq7IgFRoXsbcDx4EJlJfkB7OtFohR9TR%2BSmEs3AK%2BzjQupdmjN&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=bQx883W8v/21QYuxo20fShdMcelhLrdfau3OJrz0jJFStZTLRqVOdpr5XP9p9kbb&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fhbbXmpLK8XrG6fkoyumj8Buv8eP8IiPSE3ErLF/pdwY6S09ODj4TYfcqhuv%2BClX&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=JhqTWzfyNptRt8YjohkoaI8rHgAihlxBmgcBvyAL7rxhOpxwmbzwaaLRkFg4aK5G&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=X0RMoq6OA8Q1BeqgOGKZ4LH6CJ12I35uw8WPC8lQhVqKZfz38wjNJY1WD9aRzEM4&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0fgnC/PNE8y11F0oIDTQcSf1ApTaBlZsPbdMcwGBUAhM2rs0ecatX0PEERL93fb6&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GFcIQgw2Q3ySJ9JpJH/wafIx%2B0LCbC9DnavMmmRl7CgnHM1bsIih1kZhZiqJQAyu&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rJFFQ0F5hwMYsZ14v7ivgolPiSixLwgqxJy5Qd/7P%2BLBVmeujkmjDtCh9UXhjhRo&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=d4DHisT/cdWpZ7/rTTZcZ1jyIRMQ8KfeTbo%2BKldqQqWfBSCqaoWFDVXTm9ohXxh%2B&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3gUu2mL0pQiK6UpVcO61J%2BioVk2fRcD4S1Qxe5O6ONQWrJCxza/NXBW902m5TLcH&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=55wavSoww7AUuhyAwkk4AI7oAf/wZvxiDK4NH3h9n8j3FS8Or4ns5zzV/%2BGrDW8b&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=lsGo9J6S7RpxhD34PFd4arwgMv3i6TVgZWCrbgPo%2B1vfFajEXUnzqnrD/ee1Rc5L&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=RkiWlp/RvvtsnJ0XDriPMjRj9bpQF%2BBiC4twmGTyKqRLEnHIw3hxWYyDKap3yNEi&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ac4J/idq8VjB6E7ksRiJqL3/ZOF9DBuEfDrXknFbXeRmTXH1XpSvw9h37/xwNXR5&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=a1HbQAjvdWG%2BcRZKrrfJRhcc23SQCzSzm2uXW9ksnTUWauKIOWfSRJZNFCfY7rnK&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cIwDUsPDizKAe6fELp9dWMGq%2BUPO8RnWoP%2BR5DLylFFCGpM5MqqLJ7ZL1Vo%2BvV%2B1&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=tLYRs/h5iVMxj3F8FC7xqabDkjyTUa5oS%2BpIFi0KyZutYl7ky1mEVYiDwYeQymWQ&


 
 
 

11/01/2012 08:32    |Town of Brunswick |PG     2
jhenze              |OCTOBER 2012 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 04
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                   ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

131122 43505  FD EMPG grant            0            .00       4,105.12       4,105.12                     -4,105.12  100.0% 
131122 43506  FD SAFER grant       20,000      20,000.00            .00            .00                     20,000.00     .0% 
131132 43103  Highway Grant Fund      215,000     215,000.00      52,136.00      52,136.00                    162,864.00   24.2% 
131142 43104  State General Assista       35,000      35,000.00       6,886.89       4,754.67                     28,113.11   19.7% 
131190 43102  State Tax Exemption R       26,000      26,000.00       5,284.07       5,284.07                     20,715.93   20.3% 
131192 43101  State Revenue Sharing    1,450,000   1,450,000.00     502,582.60     139,745.22                    947,417.40   34.7% 
131192 43105  Emergency Management        4,288       4,288.00            .00            .00                      4,288.00     .0% 
131192 43106  Snowmobile Receipts        1,500       1,500.00            .00            .00                      1,500.00     .0% 
134546 43120  State Education Subsi   10,451,354  10,451,354.00   4,668,250.49   2,586,068.87                  5,783,103.51   44.7% 
134546 43121  State Adult Educ. Sub       31,000      31,000.00            .00            .00                     31,000.00     .0% 
134546 43150  Federal Education Sub            0            .00      76,612.21      42,169.33                    -76,612.21  100.0% 

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental         12,234,142  12,234,142.00   5,315,857.38   2,834,263.28                  6,918,284.62   43.5%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   12,234,142  12,234,142.00   5,315,857.38   2,834,263.28                  6,918,284.62

 
40 Charges for services               
_________________________________________

 
141111 44110  Agent Fee Auto Reg       50,000      50,000.00      18,692.00       4,147.00                     31,308.00   37.4% 
141111 44111  Agent Fee Boat/ATV/Sn        1,500       1,500.00         345.00          32.00                      1,155.00   23.0% 
141611 44131  Advertising Fees            0            .00         436.56         170.01                       -436.56  100.0% 
142121 44155  Ambulance Service Fee      800,000     800,000.00     333,627.84      71,805.36                    466,372.16   41.7% 
142121 44166  Special Detail - Fire          500         500.00         494.52         494.52                          5.48   98.9% 
142221 44161  Witness Fees        3,500       3,500.00       1,300.00         950.00                      2,200.00   37.1% 
142221 44162  Police Reports        3,600       3,600.00       1,513.00         700.00                      2,087.00   42.0% 
142221 44163  School Resource Offic       77,424      77,424.00            .00            .00                     77,424.00     .0% 
142221 44165  Special Detail - Poli        1,000       1,000.00      13,191.50         783.00                    -12,191.50 1319.2% 
142221 44167  Dispatch Services fee      135,000     135,000.00      51,665.83      10,609.00                     83,334.17   38.3% 
143431 44175  Recycling Revenue       25,000      25,000.00       9,508.00       3,466.00                     15,492.00   38.0% 
144545 44100  School Tuition, etc      220,812     220,812.00      12,732.94       3,900.00                    208,079.06    5.8% 

 
TOTAL Charges for services       1,318,336   1,318,336.00     443,507.19      97,056.89                    874,828.81   33.6%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,318,336   1,318,336.00     443,507.19      97,056.89                    874,828.81

 
50 Fines & Penalties                  
_________________________________________

 
151621 45103  Unlicensed Dog Fines        6,750       6,750.00         600.00          50.00                      6,150.00    8.9% 
152121 45104  False Alarm Fire        2,000       2,000.00            .00            .00                      2,000.00     .0% 
152121 45107  Fire Code Violation F            0            .00         200.00            .00                       -200.00  100.0% 
152221 45100  Ordinance Fines          600         600.00         133.00          80.00                        467.00   22.2% 

 
 
 
 
 

http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=MXgzwFgQTMfVNpFtylzDp6hJoHgie7wdy7A5v8CG/Pf9r8Y9ik2dWRILt28miRhN&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=EYvGyFPwB20xgSnWXIR2/xN/Owio0z%2BfjwivTp1DBrOEmsZOlzG2xS4g3yqm45/Z&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=6s7r0%2BjPWP1hNysltzJjpHxHUVrIRu0%2B26umXkjdCWyY8hPB/Yfxq8bTu4sUAdlz&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=D8mhkDvxPYeTQI3qJbzhoKzq2uM4sb5j5Gq4ksARvX3Ke05AvepLgnFmYbkO1lh3&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=j8oxHyAp4RXzNC3qIJpe7jk631U3pLcnrS5xooztEIV3yVxPFZAKUBL/lYoKJ4OR&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=aXNbRLUImWhmH8L3SnI1RkHZiyak5nxUAN2FBYbYECaZTMkfd8xdiyqlY4npsU3s&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CRq1XqcfDpjzaAaQcRWIGa%2BanzhagWXE%2Bttws5LqIzInF1JV5XKMk07JLHDkbekY&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pAzMVB8KepDHGDJ4/P5MTHKHzxhm8ndB3%2B7Qxh59NPvIRoxXppA4mWeU3tFp9w4J&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fz8ldbDSW4GUD2qs%2Bodk/3R8r4XjT2Opk4AZ5SQDaVHa8dxoQlDUnTPDmQ2FGmz7&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=uJoJ/tJEBVjq99Zrycxm/MA60wB5mo9FkuniiNV2DpnIp8QJNeHFn%2BV7/ID38n2H&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=LEXBbxMLuvMwR/EqFYfN8oNdH6F76ZO0AtBYc4KqA3HdFyk4pFOl%2By1AnBs%2B8WE4&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=YGLsX2UNThBe90fA2pMmAFvHLJYPZM7NI23NIYsyllzPvmBwXesHxMQ34X/O6y6U&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ftVpqhqgvrS3S4saag3wA7F%2BtNjxofdkYDABXYMeLWJtnv9pnm%2BnWw/uYbrd03i%2B&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IzPooiqFZXlvIwTeKqz5m4VxoVzgSKzKU1BxdH%2BJkAGlVzAm7k6KzXVP9nq1Rha9&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=6LEU8h8b0jf3BM9ODFkichzW2yZlgl5C3W7ajzezakQl2C%2BD1eTdh4d5IHgU8dAE&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2B/pMDG%2BcsdQ0MIYJ9edJSUx8zAMnycW6wQ8D%2BW5t0JWysSUNM4O9a5/xslfl7HMY&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1yFcA7VBnGi83kqkj7TLx80UnpwqF3Nkaj132pOCfFkyEcGb0q9TTX3rba%2B4XEpA&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kbDwEe2z5y2rycpyGTUkz2D15Q7ii1KJOBcPDCQccj1W2zZcgBEF26uhRIt%2BrR%2Bi&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=FLJk6EGAtfp9ekk5fb12hbwDaLJ7esEqQ/NXWWk3YC6iUkewVZvfYJvqHURamZ8/&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mSIVUumZ%2B1C01dwyEJ/SqnBhja%2BUJ0qLmkOAVpQWi2JMK9StkUaDaV3U/79YHU17&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NWsOJhgH2DrLXggxleLTLCoz0nePssLjlR1y6ziL3JA6f6bppj6yXSss%2Bt18BWgg&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kho1x5ZwAsnZJe2421JAP2iKcQEjmIJbNT0EMRdzrPG0xnJ26ZuVJjWX4nRM0/bY&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pQGZD8n7I4UWdLugEQRCXhSK6v%2BMlLSmF/oxsy1ZEc7Oh9EQu1j5MWQUk6RdizwH&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5TLiGQdcsbwRxImaBdzJ1zc/Xl1GHJ9kePU8Wlug%2Bbv%2BMY6RXetYJ9ha772hon/s&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=KxWBvpsEfBbfNOafPmHQdXeryyfdUO8/Gn1iLfkHwsCFpVk00ee/pca85M7lsy%2B/&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1Zz1wuufF2ffu0ro4oniaoPZfZgUQKWeqO3%2BhxwPxcqwN93opghRM3y6AVqr9B/2&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=llXRRrslNVcgzpBhKOMXxsyEx9K2KM%2BzWcoPKN7/uDFipXdfRgb4oxrxgyauY8Zc&


 
 
 

11/01/2012 08:32    |Town of Brunswick |PG     3
jhenze              |OCTOBER 2012 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 04
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                   ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
152221 45101  Parking Tickets        6,000       6,000.00       6,657.00       1,950.00                       -657.00  111.0% 
152221 45102  Leash Law Fines          500         500.00         425.00         350.00                         75.00   85.0% 
152221 45105  False Alarm Police          300         300.00         -45.00           5.00                        345.00   15.0% 

 
TOTAL Fines & Penalties             16,150      16,150.00       7,970.00       2,435.00                      8,180.00   49.3%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       16,150      16,150.00       7,970.00       2,435.00                      8,180.00

 
60 Interest earned                    
_________________________________________

 
161193 46100  Interest Earned      100,000     100,000.00       6,358.79       1,888.56                     93,641.21    6.4% 

 
TOTAL Interest earned              100,000     100,000.00       6,358.79       1,888.56                     93,641.21    6.4%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      100,000     100,000.00       6,358.79       1,888.56                     93,641.21

 
70 Donations                          
_________________________________________

 
171952 47000  BDC Contrib to Econ D       75,000      75,000.00      75,000.00      75,000.00                           .00  100.0% 
171952 47001  MRRA - Eco Dev positi       50,000      50,000.00      12,498.00       4,166.00                     37,502.00   25.0% 
171952 47002  MRRA - MCOG DUES       15,000      15,000.00      15,208.50            .00                       -208.50  101.4% 

 
TOTAL Donations                    140,000     140,000.00     102,706.50      79,166.00                     37,293.50   73.4%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      140,000     140,000.00     102,706.50      79,166.00                     37,293.50

 
90 Other                              
_________________________________________

 
191111 49000  Finance Miscellaneous        1,000       1,000.00      28,937.96      14,275.05                    -27,937.96 2893.8% 
191111 49104  Property & Casualty R            0            .00      10,039.00            .00                    -10,039.00  100.0% 
191111 49105  Postage & Handling            0            .00         982.00         220.00                       -982.00  100.0% 
191111 49106  W/C Proceeds            0            .00       7,670.10       1,044.19                     -7,670.10  100.0% 
191111 49210  Insurance Proceeds            0            .00      16,540.00         420.00                    -16,540.00  100.0% 
191192 49100  Cable Television      200,000     200,000.00            .00            .00                    200,000.00     .0% 
191194 49150  Gen Govt Asset Sales            0            .00         262.00            .00                       -262.00  100.0% 
191611 49000  Town Clerk Miscellane        1,200       1,200.00         500.00          95.00                        700.00   41.7% 
191911 49000  Planning Miscellaneou          200         200.00          77.00          44.75                        123.00   38.5% 
192121 49000  Fire Miscellaneous        9,000       9,000.00      10,015.00      10,768.89                     -1,015.00  111.3% 
192221 49000  Police Miscellaneous        9,000       9,000.00      10,741.48      10,000.00                     -1,741.48  119.3% 
192294 49153  Police Vehicle Sales       16,000      16,000.00            .00            .00                     16,000.00     .0% 
193131 49000  Public Works Miscella            0            .00        -845.15            .00                        845.15  100.0% 

 
 
 
 
 

http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cBXxJBd/k8yENrCo0gGHW/SSquouA0Gk8rt6rQgBgOBJ5PipEI/xi2zxTurqRBJZ&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=InTj82YOz2k4SUocPP3NwW3r2wvFrkGsjFMPWrdm1dWoMANFVinfo6u1Xs2f8VgJ&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=siiA4biLcyWJ6P8r3q9OpGBjT3VhUy8FEgSjlGvH5eR%2BR09soNtvGv%2BNUnI/XPI5&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=d7oZUStZqI2HwOuDJpFNgr5qXuXk8ZIUJP1GfGg8KMkbMn0DCSO58cizy7WCrWtz&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=O9BNeebpd7u3VKB%2Bv1RIcsSesKUmZ/pn5a717Bmm248AG3GuEy/oc9zgqMFm%2BL/W&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0CAQMps3s8s4PfdwijLoziU8NKxi/3ZdvUUOJeFPoNzlDtXNVbDRpCa7UKwu%2B6oQ&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pBHI%2BN%2BA5pavklpdJuB2v46vUinud%2B3sHp4vfwHpE4U1WpSSRbmnedpNIXQHSd73&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1bju5CuEWTm%2BnAFiEC%2BKVRzexir8NHsJEyOATl7ieZdtGelC73p77BNQaO5oRaan&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Q/nwXxvltYz3BRvn2xw2bvp4qR2BspiHXzDfk3dLCAbMknbOwEoXi1xi0X/P9qhP&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=x8/c6oNaxlkx5dBRRi8wQEJoh0BkFD5bHscg9FXxitrQjdZUONtPInHnMcQ77NfS&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fn0/gwmebrwr%2BrMxQ2/5C4oysFxlO5xHKOzqKsXTaEi%2BriCMmfL5l8YzED5lRwd0&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NE41MLjxSIRh0lOdN00eQ4o%2BVBtccNr7FJUM3FnFelVPrHcVX4Be7hhHy/Uy8SVf&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=eJTNGr1Ne4usHrq32oQmvZN/9GNWRgTLQNWdxJqlfzI34vSqbVru4FYsT3WPVlXi&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ip/DoNO3N9lhnBDmIqNr%2Bv8q78dhS1bbVKWqkYrs6lYLuecJy6nsBiW/ApADn78h&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ThK4538Ait/qeSA9byyw6Ynfo8Q/4aRSnp5l8oNbday5XfpTpl/heiRppw3OKikr&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ra7Pxr7SXaa1ery0ho%2BSjHH/m%2BEhDlU2QyS9MveANuuLTKvUGowKo8LINlBgXp66&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ltHIMDxx71ep2KPWfHBOysC89BDgskzPF%2BQHO4vgWrA9nPnBpk2zkMm2TRLQExi%2B&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=BKCpo6beQhMa8hzr7mWyNszDwB/vEHjkFmX5b4pTLEmJSnlpximAZ9tjKBbK3/Tk&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=zqysbxR1efwjJsoO6VVvb3zrd3Wi8DTT%2BtSjFqTgfFunVtI2U6wUhpK1fHm9xzTy&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2eKmE4tgm8Ynf62rDqI%2BEWgCBmj7fDb7jkDgslRWvsYFAHguOsbfRwkIM34noKOh&


 
 
 

11/01/2012 08:32    |Town of Brunswick |PG     4
jhenze              |OCTOBER 2012 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2013 04
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                   ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
194141 49103  General Assistance Re            0            .00       5,928.88       1,471.67                     -5,928.88  100.0% 
194545 49000  School Miscellaneous      174,500     174,500.00     122,469.49       4,227.75                     52,030.51   70.2% 
195051 49000  Recreation Miscellane            0            .00       6,574.94       6,574.94                     -6,574.94  100.0% 
199980 48100  General Fund Transfer      200,000     200,000.00     200,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0% 

 
TOTAL Other                        610,900     610,900.00     419,892.70      49,142.24                    191,007.30   68.7%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      610,900     610,900.00     419,892.70      49,142.24                    191,007.30

 
GRAND TOTAL   50,089,531  50,089,531.00  40,974,881.96   3,344,559.79                  9,114,649.04   81.8%

 
                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9KnRRRUz%2BApbaA7oWRPxyr/pF0DMuWYvqXXil/boJz52daMb%2BgcTLLUnB/%2BIzOAP&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pindH2cFjjDiHFporZnVzfoA8P/R1J2LmV1kkRJuQHuX2vmNp5QuX1vfhDuz3iDE&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mMeVomF%2BPzywaB%2Bi/OVPhuT8gI4mo2f94ZKK5cFYFuLZtekegvlt1JF8lMro2i9%2B&
http://DashboardServerIP:55000/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Iziw8%2BrmQ1/pobd63MRyqIqiPe%2BgYqKRGZpeZR67SBiq%2BZqKoMwnCRFPXdEfJJLK&


 
 

 
Manager Report B, C, and D 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 119 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
 

Resolution Amending the 2012-13 Budget 
Appropriating $174,500 from the Unassigned Balance of the General Fund  

to Fund the School Department’s Facilities Master Plan – Phase II 
 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) adopted a budget for the 2012-13 fiscal year (the 
“Budget”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town, through its capital improvement planning process, has identified  an 
additional project it wishes to undertake in the 2012-13 fiscal year; and 
 
WHEREAS, section 504 of the Charter of the Town of Brunswick provides a method for amending 
the Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has held a public hearing on the proposed amendments to the Budget  
at least ten days prior to the adoption of this resolution; 
 
NOW THEREFORE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED: 
 
Section 1.  The sum of $174,500 is appropriated from the Town’s unassigned General Fund Balance 
for  a project entitled the School Department Facilities Master Plan - Phase II (the “Master Plan or 
Phase II” or the “Project”)).  The scope of the project is defined in a letter dated August 7, 2012 from 
PDT Architects to School Superintendent Paul Perzanoski.  The School Superintendent is authorized 
to modify the scope of work as he, at his sole discretion, deems appropriate and in the best interest of 
the Brunswick School Department. 
 
Section 2.  Upon a determination by the Finance Director that the project is complete or abandoned, 
any remaining balance in the project account shall lapse to the Town’s General Fund. 
 
Section 3.  Project costs shall include any and all costs determined by the Town’s Finance Director to 
be project costs in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 
 
Section 4.  The Superintendent of Schools or his designee is authorized to execute contracts and take 
any other steps deemed necessary in order to proceed with the project.  Any expenditure to date as 
well as any other action taken by the Town of Brunswick, the Brunswick School Department, or the 
Superintendent of Schools, relating to the project, including the solicitation of proposals, or 
participation in any process that solicited proposals, as well as any subsequent negotiations or 
contracts with vendors, are hereby ratified, confirmed, and approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that should implementation of the Master Plan result in future 
capital expenditures, the Town’s General fund, at the Town Manager’s discretion, may be reimbursed 
from future capital projects funding, up to the full cost of the Master Plan. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that while General Fund resources will fund the original 
expenditures related to the development of a Master Plan, it is expected that the Master Plan will 
result in capital expenditures to be funded in part or in whole by the issuance of debt, and that 



proceeds from the issuance of debt will be used to reimburse the General Fund for the cost of the 
Master Plan, that it is the intent of the Town Council that this Resolution shall constitute the Town’s 
declaration of official intent within the meaning of Treasury Regulation 1.150-2. 
 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council: October 15, 2012 
Public Hearing:   November 5, 2012 
Adopted by Town Council:  
 
 
O:\Finance\Budget\Budget 2012-13\Resolutions\2012-13 Budget Amendment.docx 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO: Brunswick Council   
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
DATE: October 19, 2012     
 
RE: Budget amendment for School Master Plan     
 
As the Council prepares to consider the proposal to amend the budget for what is being 
described as phase II of the School Master Plan, I want to provide some background 
information to assist in your decision. 
 
Background: In July 2011, the Council passed a resolution to adopt an emergency 
appropriation in the amount of $200,000 to fund what was described as Phase 1 of the 
School Department Master Plan. This project was intended to assist the School Board 
facilities committee undertake a comprehensive look at their facilities for the purpose of 
making recommendations regarding renovations and expansions. This emergency 
appropriation was one of the last of this nature as we have subsequently utilized the 
budget amendment process established in the Town Charter. This project was 
effectively completed in late spring of 2012 and the School Department is now poised 
for what is described as Phase 2. 
 
As similar to last year, the recommendation is to amend the municipal budget to provide 
the funding of Phase 2. This is distinguished from amending the School Budget. The 
primary reason for this is that if we were to amend the School Budget, it would need to 
go to referendum per State law. This would result in an additional cost of several 
thousand dollars. 
 
Regardless of which budget would be amended, the source of the funds will be from 
fund balance. It has been suggested that there is sufficient funds in the School 
Department fund balance to fund this rather that the Town’s fund balance. While that is 
true, the utilization of funds from the School’s fund balance simply means that the funds 
will not be there next year to be used to reduce the impact on the FY’14 budget. At the 
end of the day, the Town is going to have to provide this level of funding ($175,000) 
either by appropriating from the fund balance now, or next year or by increasing the tax 
commitment in next year’s budget. 
 
Phase 2: Phase 2 is to prepare the detailed design drawings for the renovations and 
expansion of Coffin School and the Junior High. It will also likely include some work to 
determine where the bus maintenance facility should be located. The consideration to 



expand and renovate Coffin school is further necessitated by the closure of the Jordan 
Acres School. I have been advised by the Superintendent that one of the significant 
factors in deciding to close Jordan Acres is the cost of redundant staff (Principal, 
support staff, specialists etc). This has been identified to be $700,000 per year. So, if 
Jordan Acres is renovated and reopened, the School Department will need and 
additional $800,000 in personnel and operating costs. 
 
The consequence of closing JA certainly escalates the need to renovate and expand 
Coffin sooner than not.  
 
Summary: The Council is being asked to amend the budget utilizing the process 
outlined in the Town Charter, rather than adopting an emergency appropriation. The 
recommendation is to amend the municipal budget rather than the school budget in 
order to avoid a referendum and to avoid the additional cost. It is of no significance 
which budget is amended as it will be a matter of the Town funding either this phase or 
funding next year’s school budget in this amount if the School Department were to fund 
Phase 2. The drawings and plans are necessary particularly due to the impact of closing 
Jordan Acres School. Closing Jordan Acres results in avoiding annual operating 
increase of $800,000. 
 
 
 

 .  
 
 



 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

OFFICE OF THE FINANCE DIRECTOR 
28 FEDERAL STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011-1583 

 
 

TELEPHONE      207-725-6652 

FAX                      207-725-4107 

 

www.brunswickme.org/departments/finance 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Gary Brown 
  Town Manager 
 
FROM:  John Eldridge 
  Finance Director 
 
DATE:  October 10, 2012 
 
RE:  School Department Master Plan 
 
 
On July 11, 2011, the Town Council adopted a resolution that appropriated up to $200,000 to fund the 
development of a School Master Plan.  A copy of that resolution is attached.   
 
As of June 30, 2012, the School Department had completed Phase I of the Plan.  As there was no contract 
in place for a subsequent planning phase, the balance of $69,886.59 was lapsed to the Town’s General 
Fund balance.   
 
The School Department sought proposals for a second phase of the planning process and in August 2012 
reached an agreement with PDT Architects regarding a scope of work.  A copy of PDT’s proposal is 
attached.  PDT estimates that the maximum cost of the proposed scope of work is $174,500.  The budget 
amendment resolution for Phase II appropriates $174,500 from the Town’s General Fund balance for that 
work.  Should Phase II result in costs lower than budgeted, the remaining appropriation would be lapsed 
back to the fund balance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
A Resolution Authorizing an Emergency Appropriation and Expenditure of up to $200,000 

from Available Unassigned General Fund Revenues  
In Order to Fund a Master Plan for the Brunswick School Department 

 
 
WHEREAS, Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) through its School Department (the “Department”) has 
recently completed construction of the Harriet Beecher Elementary School, set to open in 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, as part of the planning for the development of the Harriet Beecher Stowe School, the 
Department also identified the need for renovation and expansion of the Jordan Acres Elementary School 
and the Robert P.T. Coffin Elementary School; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department has recently closed two elementary schools, the Longfellow School and the 
Hawthorne School; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department has temporarily closed the Jordan Acres School for the 2011-12 and 2012-
13 school year; and 
 
WHEREAS, previous planning by the Department has also identified the need for expansion and 
renovation of the Brunswick Junior High School; and 
 
WHEREAS, the closure of the Naval Air Station, Brunswick has resulted in a decline in student 
enrollment; and 
 
WHEREAS, in light of these events, the Department believes it is necessary to re-evaluate its building 
and programming needs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department has proposed the development of a Master Plan to guide it with its building 
and programming needs and has estimated the cost of preparing the plan to be $200,000 (the “Master 
Plan” or “Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department believes the decline in student enrollment and the temporary closure of the 
Jordan Acres School may present it with an opportunity to complete the Plan and implement its 
recommendations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) has adopted the first year, 2011-12, of a capital 
improvement program for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2012 – 2016 (the “CIP”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Master Plan is identified in the CIP and scheduled for 2011-12; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CIP has identified school construction projects in years 2012-15 to be funded with 
general obligation bonds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department does not have funds budgeted for the Master Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager has determined that the need to fund the costs associated with the 
Master Plan is an emergency within the meaning of section 510 of the Charter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager has recommended that up to $200,000 be appropriated from available 
unassigned General Fund revenues in order to complete the Master Plan; and 
 



 

WHEREAS, the Town Council concurs that the need to appropriate up to $200,000 towards the Master 
Plan is an emergency within the meaning of section 510 of the Charter; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Manager or Department be authorized to 
execute any and all agreements determined, in the Town Manager’s or Department’s judgment, to be in 
the best interest of the Town of Brunswick in order to complete the Master Plan; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Town appropriates and authorizes the expenditure of up to 
$200,000 from available unassigned General Fund revenues to accomplish the Master Plan; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Town is authorized to establish a capital projects account to 
record revenues and expenditures and other financial information related to the development of the 
Master Plan; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any actions taken to date by the Town Manager or Department in 
connection with the development and completion of the Master Plan are hereby ratified, confirmed, and 
approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that should implementation of the Master Plan result in future capital 
expenditures, the Town’s General fund, at the Town Manager’s discretion, may be reimbursed from 
future capital projects funding, up to the full cost of the Master Plan. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that while General Fund resources will fund the original expenditures 
related to the development of the Master Plan, it is expected that the Master Plan will result in capital 
expenditures to be funded in part or in whole by the issuance of debt, and that proceeds from the issuance 
of debt will be used to reimburse the General Fund for the cost of the Master Plan, that it is the intent of 
the Town Council that this Resolution shall constitute the Town’s declaration of official intent within the 
meaning of Treasury Regulation 1.150-2. 
 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council – July 11, 2011 
 
Adopted by Town Council – July 11, 2011 
 
 
O:\Finance\Resolutions\School Master Plan.docx 













 
 

 
ITEM 120 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO: Brunswick Council   
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
DATE: November 15, 2012 
 
RE:  Property exchange agreement, Town of Brunswick and BDC       
 
Attached please find the recommended terms for the exchange of properties between 
the Town of Brunswick and the Brunswick Development Corporation (BDC). 
 
The Council authorized the negotiations for this exchange at a previous Council 
meeting. Fran Smith was the lead staff working with the Town attorney to develop the 
terms of the exchange agreement. The process took longer than was anticipated and 
during the busy time of the recent election, I became more involved in the process so 
that Fran could focus her attention on the election. 
 
The general terms of the agreement are as follows: 
 
The Town of Brunswick will close on the acquisition of the Stanwood and Pleasant 
Street properties in the immediate future. 
 
The closing on the transfer of 28 Federal Street to the BDC will be delayed until 
sometime after the Town Office relocates to the McLellan Building in 2014. 
 
The Town will provide certain assurances related to asbestos, lead paint, code 
compliance and fuel tank registration to the BDC. 
 
The Town retains the bell in the bell tower and the doll’s heads that are on the east side 
of the Town Office. 

 .  
 
 



Page 1 of 12 
 

FINAL 11/08/12 

 
AGREEMENT FOR THE EXCHANGE OF REAL ESTATE 

 
Agreement for the Exchange of Real Estate made as of this ____ day of November 2012 

(the “Effective Date”) by and between BRUNSWICK DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a 
Maine Not for Profit Corporation, with an address of 28 Federal Street, Brunswick, Maine 04011 
(“BDC”) and TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, a body politic and corporate with an address of 28 
Federal Street, Brunswick, Maine 04011 (“Town”) and is entered into in connection with the 
following recitals: 

 
A. Town is the owner of a parcel of land located at 28 Federal Street in Brunswick, 

Maine, being a portion of that property described in a deed from Hilda E. Wigley to the Inhabitants 
of the Town of Brunswick dated April 13, 1960 and recorded in the Cumberland County Registry 
of Deeds in Book 2534, Page 18 as shown on Tax Map U13 as Lot 150 (the “Federal Property”). 

 
B. BDC is the owner of four (4) abutting parcels of land located at (1) 1 Stanwood 

Street in Brunswick, Maine as described in a deed from Treworgy Family Limited Liability 
Company to BDC dated July 14, 2011 and recorded in said Registry of Deeds in Book 28822, Page 
193 as shown on Tax Map U15 as Lot 76; (2) 3 Stanwood Street in Brunswick, Maine as described 
in deed from David C. Bellville to BDC dated June 8, 2011 and recorded in said Registry of Deeds 
in Book 28747, Page 6 as shown on Tax Map U15 as Lot 77; (3) 85 Pleasant Street in Brunswick, 
Maine as described in a deed from Edgebert Associates to BDC and recorded in said Registry of 
Deeds in Book 28747, Page 1 as shown on Tax Map U15 as Lot 75 and; (4) 81 Pleasant Street in 
Brunswick, Maine as described in a deed from Smith Apartments, LLC to BDC dated June 8, 2011 
and recorded in said Registry of Deeds in Book 28747, Page 3 as shown on Tax Map U15 as Lot 
74 (collectively the “Stanwood Property”).  
 

C. Town desires to acquire the Stanwood Property and BDC is willing to grant the 
Stanwood Property to Town. BDC desires to acquire the Federal Property and Town is willing to 
grant the Federal Property to BDC.  
 

D. Although the fair market values of the real estate interests to be granted are not 
equal, i.e., the Federal Property has a value of approximately $360,000.00 and the Stanwood 
Property has a value of approximately $1.3 Million, Town and BDC have each concluded that the 
nominal value of the real estate interests to be granted by each to the other is not the determinant of 
the extrinsic value of each property. BDC has independently determined that the extrinsic value of 
the Federal Property is equal to the nominal value of the Stanwood Property in that the proposed 
exchange furthers the mission and purpose of BDC. The exchange is consistent with the 
“purpose clause” BDC’s Articles of Incorporation, to wit: it lessens the burdens of government, 
combats community deterioration at the Stanwood Property site and provides for the 
development or re-development of business enterprises at the 28 Federal Property site. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and for good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 



Page 2 of 12 
 

 
1. EXCHANGE OF PROPERTY.  The Town hereby agrees to grant to BDC fee title 

to the Federal Property and BDC agrees to acquire the Federal Property, and in exchange for 
such property, BDC hereby agrees to grant to Town fee title to the Stanwood Property and Town 
agrees to acquire such property, all upon and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein.   

 
2. PURCHASE PRICE. There will be no payment for the exchange of the properties 

other than the exchange of the properties.  

 
3. TITLE.  Town and BDC shall convey their respective properties, including all 

appurtenances and easements and rights serving or benefiting same, to the transferee at the 
Closings in fee simple with good and marketable title, free and clear of all liens and 
encumbrances except permitted exceptions which shall include customary utility easements of 
record benefiting the property and other easements, restrictions and covenants of record which 
do not adversely affect in any material way the use of the property as currently improved and 
used. The parties have until the date of the Stanwood Property Closing to notify the other in 
writing of title defects.  Upon such notice, the party receiving the notice shall have a reasonable 
period of time in which to remedy such title defects. In the event that said defects cannot be 
corrected or remedied within said time period, then at the transferee’s option, this Agreement 
will terminate or transferee may promptly elect to close notwithstanding such defects.  Neither 
party shall have any obligation to cure any title defects or matters identified by the other party.   

 
Town agrees that it shall not create or permit the creation of any title defects as to the 

Federal Property after the date of BDC’s title work; and, should any title defects affecting the 
Federal Property arise between the date of BDC’s title work and the Federal Closing, as 
hereinafter defined,  Town covenants and agrees to remove all such defects prior to the Federal 
Closing or, in the alternative, at Town’s expense, to provide BDC with a policy of title insurance 
affirmatively insuring against any loss arising from such defect(s). 

 
4. CLOSING. The closings on the two transfers (i.e., the transfer of the Stanwood 

Property and the transfer of the Federal Property (respectively, the “Stanwood Closing” and the 
“Federal Closing”; collectively the “Closings”)) shall take place at the offices of Eaton Peabody, 
167 Park Row, Brunswick, Maine.  

 The Stanwood Closing shall take place thirty (30) business days from the Effective Date 
of this Agreement, at 10:00 a.m. at the location designated above or if Town and BDC shall 
mutually agree in advance and in writing, at another time and place. At the Stanwood Closing, 
BDC shall execute and deliver to Town a Quitclaim Deed with Covenant to the Stanwood 
Property, and the parties shall otherwise execute and deliver to the other party all related and 
customary closing documents in form reasonably satisfactory to the parties, including title 
insurance affidavits, reasonably necessary to convey title to the Stanwood Property to Town. 

 
The Federal Closing shall take place at the later of (1) thirty (30) business days after the 

date that Town has fully vacated the Federal Property in accordance with this Agreement and (2) 



Page 3 of 12 
 

thirty (30) business days after the date on which BDC has received the engineering inspection 
report and certificate(s) referred to in Section 12(a) of this agreement, at 10:00 a.m. at the location 
designated above or if Town and BDC shall mutually agree in advance and in writing, at another 
time and place. At the Federal Closing, Town shall execute and deliver to BDC a Quitclaim Deed 
with Covenant to the Federal Property, and the parties shall otherwise execute and deliver to the 
other party all related and customary closing documents in form reasonably satisfactory to the 
parties, including title insurance affidavits, reasonably necessary to convey title to the Federal 
Property to BDC.  It is anticipated that the Town will vacate the Federal Property on or about the 
date Town has moved its facilities and operations from the Federal Property to property known as 
the McClellan property.  This vacation is anticipated to take place in the late Summer/early Fall of 
2014, provided that the parties acknowledge that there may be a delay in the timing of the vacation.  
In any event, the outside date for the Federal Closing shall be June 1, 2015, subject to further 
extension only upon the mutual agreement of the parties. 

 
5. RISK OF LOSS and DAMAGE. All risk of loss to the Federal Property shall be 

borne by Town until the Federal Closing. All risk of loss to the Stanwood Property shall be borne 
by BDC until the Stanwood Closing.  It is agreed that the property each is acquiring and 
transferring shall at the respective Closings be in substantially the same condition as of the 
Effective Date, excepting reasonable use and wear. If the property is materially damaged or 
destroyed prior to Closing, the party that is acquiring the damaged property may elect to either 
delay the closing until repairs or restoration is completed (subject to and limited by the availability 
and amounts of insurance proceeds) or to close the applicable transaction and accept the property 
in its as-is condition together with an assignment of the other (selling) party’s right to any 
insurance proceeds specifically relating to such damage and loss. 

It is agreed that the Town prior to the Federal Closing: (i) shall keep and maintain the 
structure and grounds of the Federal Property in good repair and condition, meaning in the same 
repair and condition they are in on the Effective Date, reasonable and ordinary wear and tear and 
casualty excepted; (ii) shall keep the Federal Property building and grounds in the same level of 
compliance with the Town’s applicable building, fire and safety codes as they are in as of the 
Effective Date, changes in such codes excepted, meaning that Town will not cause the building to 
be modified or changed in such a way as to bring it into a state that is non-compliant (or, as the 
case may be, more non-compliant) than it was before the modification or change; (iii) shall 
maintain the same levels of fire and casualty insurance coverage as are in place as of the Effective 
Date; and (iv) may remove the “doll heads” (located on the side of the building) and the bell in 
the tower.  

 
6. DUE DILIGENCE; ACCESS; INSPECTION. Both parties shall have the right at 

reasonable times and upon reasonable prior notice to the other to inspect the properties to be 
transferred, including the right to conduct inspections, surveys, testing and engineering studies.  
Any such inspections, surveys, testing and studies shall be done in such manner and at such times 
as will minimize any disturbance of the properties and any occupants thereof.  Subsequent to any 
disturbance of the property, transferee agrees to promptly restore the property to its condition prior 
to the disturbance, including without limitation repair of any damage or harm caused by or related 
to any such inspection, survey, testing or studies.  

 



Page 4 of 12 
 

7. POSSESSION OF THE PROPERTY. The Federal Property shall be delivered to 
BDC at the time of the Federal Closing free and clear of all tenancies or occupancies by any person 
or entity. The Stanwood Property shall be delivered to Town at the time of the Stanwood Closing 
free and clear of all tenancies or occupancies by any person or entity.  Unless otherwise agreed, 
both parties shall at closing deliver their property to the acquiring party free of all personal 
property, free of debris and otherwise “broom clean.”  The transfers of the Properties shall be, 
except as specifically provided herein, in their then “as-is”, “where-is” condition, without any 
representation or warranty whatsoever as to condition, defects (latent or patent), environmental 
contamination or freedom from same, habitability, usefulness for any purpose, profitability or 
value. 

 
8. REPRESENTATIONS OF TOWN. Town represents to BDC the following: (1) 

Town has all requisite authority to enter into this Agreement and to complete the exchange 
contemplated hereby. The persons or person executing this Agreement and any Closing 
documents have been or will as of the date of execution be fully authorized to act on behalf of 
Town; (2) All outstanding bills and/or accounts payable concerning the Federal Property are 
either paid or will be paid prior to or at the time of the Federal Closing. 

 
9. REPRESENTATIONS OF BDC. BDC represents to Town the following: (1)  

BDC is duly organized and in good standing in the State of Maine; (2) BDC has all requisite 
authority to enter into this Agreement and to complete the exchange contemplated hereby. The 
persons or person executing this Agreement and any Closing documents have been or will as of 
the date of execution be fully authorized to act on behalf of BDC and; (3) all outstanding bills 
and/or accounts payable concerning the Stanwood Property are either paid or will be paid prior 
to or at the time of the Stanwood Closing. 

 
10. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS.   

 
a. The parties acknowledge that they have had full opportunity to inspect the 

properties and conduct any and all investigations, including environmental investigations, 
necessary or desirable in the acquisition of their respective properties. 

 
b. Representations and Warranties.  Town represents and warrants to BDC that the 

following are true as of the date of this Agreement and shall be true as of the date of the 
Federal Closing: 

 
i. To Town’s knowledge, the present use of the Federal Property is in 

material compliance with applicable environmental laws; 
 

ii.  Town has not, and no third party acting for or on behalf of Town has, 
released, discharged, stored, or emitted hazardous substances, pollutants or 
contaminants (each, individually, a “condition” and collectively, “conditions”) on, in, 
or under the Federal Property in violation of any law, and to Town’s knowledge no 
such release, discharge, storage, or emission has occurred except  as follows:   

 



Page 5 of 12 
 

a. The Federal Property has a registered underground petroleum storage tank 
with the following specifications:  Within thirty (30) days prior to the Federal 
Closing the Town will if DEP will provide such a certificate or letter provide 
BDC with a certificate or letter from Maine Department of Environmental 
Protection (DEP) that said underground storage tank is properly registered and, to 
the extent the DEP will make such a statement, that said tank is in compliance 
with Maine law.  The current Facility Registration Certificate for said tank dated 
November 5, 2012 is attached hereto at Exhibit A. 
 
b. The Federal Property may contain asbestos.  Within thirty (30) days prior 
to the Federal Closing the Town will provide BDC with certification from a 
qualified and licensed hazardous waste professional that all the asbestos in the 
Federal Property has been abated, as necessary.  Abatement may performed by 
removal or covering, as required. 
 
c. The Federal Property may contain lead based paint.  Within thirty (30) 
days prior to the Federal Closing the Town will provide BDC with certification 
that any lead based paint has been removed or is otherwise in a condition that 
does not present a hazard for a business use. 
 
d. The Federal Property may contain de minimis quantities of special wastes 
such as mercury contained in thermostats, light switches and florescent light 
bulbs.  No certification regarding such de minimis quantities of special wastes 
shall be required. 
 

iii. During ownership of the Federal Property by Town, no letters, notices, 
orders, subpoenas, citations or other documents were received by Town from any 
regulatory agency or governmental entity regarding any environmental conditions on 
or alleged to be on the Federal Property or  indicating that the Federal Property is or 
is contemplated to be targeted for clean-up of any hazardous substances, pollutants or 
contaminants.  Town has no knowledge of any such condition or any pending or 
threatened clean-up notice or activity.  For purposes of this Agreement the terms 
“hazardous substances”, “pollutants”, “contaminants” and “contamination” shall be 
given the broadest possible meaning as designated under current federal, state and 
local environmental statutes and regulations, and by common law.   

 
iv. Each of the above representations and warranties is material and is relied 

upon by BDC.  BDC’s obligation to close hereunder on the Federal Property is 
contingent upon all required certifications set forth above being provided to BDC 
prior to, or at, the Federal closing; and, the representations and warranties of Town 
contained in this Agreement being true as of the Federal Closing date.  If, before the 
Federal Closing, Town discovers any information or facts that would materially 
change the foregoing warranties and representations, Town shall immediately give 
notice to BDC of those facts and information, and the Town will immediately 
remediate and remove all such conditions disclosed by such facts and information. 



Page 6 of 12 
 

 
v.   By the act of closing in the Federal Closing, Town shall have remade the 

representations and warranties set forth in this Section 10.   

The provisions in this Agreement shall not be considered to, and shall not, expand or create 
liability on the part of any party to any person for claims from which such party is released, 
exempted and/or protected by the Maine Tort Claims Act, as it currently is in effect or is in the 
future from time to time modified or expanded. 

 
11. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. In the event that either party defaults in its 

obligations hereunder and fails to close, the non-defaulting party may after the defaulting party’s 
failure to cure its default within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of default (or if 
more time is required, such reasonable period of time as is necessary, using commercially 
reasonable diligence and efforts, to cure same) pursue all remedies available to it at law and 
equity including specific performance. 

 
12. DISCLOSURES and INFORMATION. Town and BDC shall provide the 

following regarding the Federal Property and the Stanwood Property, respectively: 

(a) Building Information for the Federal Property.  Town, as to the Federal 
Property: Within thirty (30) business days following the Town’s vacation of the Federal Property, 
Town shall deliver to BDC:  (i) An engineering inspection report by a party mutually agreeable to 
the parties assessing the condition of the structure and all structural components and mechanical 
systems, which report is to be made at the expense of Town; (ii) certificates from the Town’s code 
enforcement officer or other appropriate parties certifying that the building, the building’s 
mechanical systems, and grounds are in compliance with all applicable building, fire and safety 
codes applicable to the following business uses, to wit: business office, college office, media 
studio, professional office and retail, all as defined in the Town of Brunswick Zoning Ordinance 
(collectively, hereinafter, “business uses”);  (iii) a letter from the Town to BDC stating that the 
Federal Property is in substantial compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and related 
regulations applicable to business uses and facilities; and, (iv) a letter from the Town’s code 
enforcement officer that the Federal Property is in compliance with the zoning performance 
standards for said business uses within the TC-1 zone or is “grandfathered” to the extent the 
Federal Property is not in compliance with any such performance standards. Delivery of such 
reports and certificates shall be deemed to satisfy this obligation of Town. Attached as Exhibit B 
are current forms of the report/certificates required by (ii) above.  These forms, their content and 
information are in form sufficient to satisfy the above requirement, provided that Town will 
provide updates to the report/certificates at the time of the Federal Closing as is more specifically 
required herein. 

 
(b) Building and other Information for the Stanwood Property.  BDC, as to the 

Stanwood Property: BDC shall deliver to Town prior to the Stanwood Closing all reports, surveys, 
title work, environmental inspections and other papers, reports and information concerning the 
Stanwood Property that are in its possession or the possession of its agents. 

 
The satisfaction with the foregoing reports, information and certifications are not conditions on 
either party’s obligation to close on this transaction. 



Page 7 of 12 
 

 
13. BROKERAGE. Town and BDC represent and warrant to each other that neither 

party has engaged the services of any real estate broker with respect to this transaction. Town 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless BDC from any claims made by any broker should Town’s 
representation in this paragraph be false.  BDC agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Town 
from any claims made by any broker should BDC’s representation in this paragraph be false. The 
foregoing indemnities shall include all reasonable legal fees and costs incurred by the 
indemnified party in defense against any such claim.  

 
14. ADJUSTMENTS, PRORATIONS AND CLOSING COSTS. (1) Real estate 

taxes, assessments (if any), and utilities shall be prorated as of the respective Closings; (2) the 
Maine real estate transfer tax shall be paid by Town and BDC in accordance with 36 M.R.S. 
§ 4641-A. The parties acknowledge that Town is exempt from transfer tax; and (3) the recording 
fee for the deed of conveyance will be paid by transferee. 

 
15. MISCELLANEOUS. 

(a) Binding Effect.  This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and bind the 
respective successors and assigns of Town and BDC.  

 
(b) Construction.  As used in this Agreement, the singular number shall include 

the plural, the plural the singular, and the use of one gender shall be deemed applicable to all 
genders. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 
Maine. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it shall not 
affect the validity or enforcement of the remaining provisions hereof. 

 
(c) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and 
the same instrument. 
 

(d) Notices.  All notices, demands and other communications hereunder shall 
be in writing and shall be given by one party to the other either: (i) by first class mail, postage 
prepaid, registered or certified, return receipt requested, to the address set forth below; (ii) by hand 
delivery to the address set forth below; (iii) by Fed Ex, or similar overnight express mail, prepaid, 
to the address set forth below; (iv) by facsimile (“Fax”) transmission to the Fax number below or 
(v) by email to the email addresses listed below. All notices shall be deemed to have been duly 
given if postmarked prior to the expiration date and time specified herein (in the case of mailing) or 
upon delivery (if hand delivered) or when delivered to a Fed Ex (or similar overnight delivery 
service) courier or office at the time indicated on the proof of delivery (if sent by overnight 
delivery service) or upon time of confirmed receipt in case of Fax or in case of email.   

 
TO BDC: Brunswick Development Corporation 

Attn: Larissa Darcy, President 
 28 Federal Street 
 Brunswick, Maine 04011 
Phone No. (207)  518-5679 



Page 8 of 12 
 

Fax No. (207) 798-5577 
Email address: ldarcy@thebankofmaine.com 

WITH A COPY TO: John F. Loyd, Jr. 
 Eaton Peabody 
 167 Park Row, P.O. Box 9 
 Brunswick, Maine 04011-0009 
Phone No. (207) 729-1144 
Fax No. (207) 729-1140 
Email address: jloyd@eatonpeabody.com 
  
TO TOWN: Town of Brunswick 

Attn: Gary Brown, Town Manager 
 28 Federal Street 
 Brunswick, Maine 04011 
Phone No. 
Fax No. 

(207) 725-6659 
(207) 725-6663 

Email address: gbrown@brunswickme.org 
  
WITH A COPY TO: Jaimie Schwartz 
 Bernstein Shur Sawyer & Nelson  
 P.O. Box 9729, 100 Middle Street 
 Portland, ME 04104 
Phone No. 207-774-1200 
Fax No. 207-774-1127 
Email address: jschwartz@bernsteinshur.com 

 
Either party may change its addresses or its Fax number for purposes of this subparagraph by 
giving the other party notice of the new addresses or Fax number in the manner described herein.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Town and BDC have executed this Agreement as of the date first 
above written. 

 
WITNESS:     BRUNSWICK DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

 
_________________________  By:___________________________ 
Print Name:     Print Name: Larissa Darcy 

     Its: President 
 

WITNESS:     TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
 
 

_________________________  By:___________________________ 
Print Name:     Print Name: Gary Brown 

     Its: Town Manager  



Page 9 of 12 
 

EXHIBIT A TO  
EXCHANGE AGREEMENT  

between 
Town Of Brunswick and Brunswick Development Corporation 

(UST Reg. Number) 
 
 



Page 10 of 12 
 

 



Page 11 of 12 
 

 
EXHIBIT B TO 

EXCHANGE AGREEMENT 
between 

Town Of Brunswick and Brunswick Development Corporation 

 



Page 12 of 12 
 

 

 



 
 

 
ITEM 121 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 









  |  1

30-A §3253. SAFE ZONES DESIGNATED BY MUNICIPALITY

30-A §3253. SAFE ZONES DESIGNATED BY MUNICIPALITY
A municipality may designate an area of the municipality that is frequented by minors as a safe zone

under Title 17-A, section 1101, subsection 23. A safe zone designated pursuant to this section must be
conspicuously marked by the municipality with an informational sign using wording provided by the
Commissioner of Public Safety. [2005, c. 415, §5 (NEW).]

SECTION HISTORY
2005, c. 415, §5 (NEW).

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish
this material, we require that you include the following disclaimer in your publication:

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this
publication reflects changes made through the Second Regular Session of the 125th Maine Legislature, is current

through September 1, 2012, and is subject to change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially
certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated and supplements for certified text.

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory
publication you may produce. Our goal is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who
is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to preserve the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or
interpretation of Maine law to the public. If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.



 
 

 
ITEM 122 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 
 



 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

TOWN MANAGERS OFFICE 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO: Brunswick Council   
 
FROM: Gary Brown, Town Manager  
 
DATE: November 15, 2012    
 
RE: Molnlycke TIF proposal     
 
The Council will be considering setting a public hearing for the purpose of adopting a 
Tax Increment Financing program to assist Molnlycke Manufacturing US, LLC at 
Brunswick Landing. 
 
The proposed program is summarized as follows: 
 

1. The term of the TIF would be for 30 years; the credit enhancement agreement 
with Molnlycke will be for 20 years. 
 

2. The TIF will capture 100% of the new value in the TIF District. 
 

3. The TIF District is 19.4 acres. It includes the current property leased to 
Molnlycke, additional properties that Molnlycke has an option to lease, and two 
additional (small) parcels that are located adjacent to the Molnlycke properties. 

 
4. The TIF is designed to create and retain jobs at Brunswick Landing. 

a. As Molnlycke creates more jobs, the amount of revenue returned to the 
company increases. 

b. If Molnlycke reduces jobs, the amount of revenue returned to the 
company is then reduced. 
 

5. The TIF is designed to have a floor and a cap.  During the 20-year term of the 
credit enhancement agreement, Molnlycke will receive a minimum annual 
reimbursement of 35% of the TIF revenue; but in no event will the company 
receive back more than 55% of the TIF revenue in any one year.  
 

6. The funding models indicate that the estimated revenue generated by this 
project (property taxes and BETE reimbursements from the State combined) will 
total $16,646,367. 

a. The Town’s total share of the $16,646,367 would be $13,672,359 or 82%. 
b. Molnlycke’s total share of the $16,646,367 would be $2,974,008, or 18%. 

 



7. The Town has developed the program to allow for the use of sheltered revenues 
for Town projects that should not result in new expenditures. 

 
 .  



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

 
 
 

An Application for a Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District 
 
 
 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 

MÖLNLYCKE MANUFACTURING  
MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT AND  

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Presented to: 
 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
 

DATED: November 15, 2012 



2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
                  Page 
 
I. Introduction ............................................................................................................3 
II. Development Program Narrative .........................................................................6 
III. Financial Plan .........................................................................................................9 
IV. Financial Data ........................................................................................................9 
V. Tax Shifts ................................................................................................................9 
VII. Municipal Approvals .............................................................................................9 

 
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
A TIF District Maps 
B Statutory Requirements & Thresholds 
C Assessor’s Certification of Original Assessed Value 
D-1 TIF Revenue Projections  
D-2 Tax Shift Calculations 
E Public Hearing Notice 
F Public Hearing Minutes 
G Town Council Order 



3 
 

I.       Introduction 
 

A. Mölnlycke Health Care and Mölnlycke Manufacturing  

            Mölnlycke Health Care (“Mölnlycke HC”) is a world-leading manufacturer of single-use 
surgical and wound products.  The company has over 6,700 employees, with a combination of 
sales offices and manufacturing facilities in over 30 countries around the world. The company’s 
home office is in Gothenburg, Sweden. 

            Mölnlycke HC started in a town called Mölnlycke in Sweden in 1849 as a textile 
manufacturer. In the 1940s, Mölnlycke HC developed a dressing product called Mesorb. In the 
following decade, the 1950s, Mölnlycke HC developed OP-Plast, the first disposable drape 
material that helped to increase hospital efficiency and protection against surgical infections. 
This product helped to establish Mölnlycke HC as one of the world’s leading health care 
companies in hospital efficiency and infection control.  

            In the early 1990s, Mölnlycke HC introduced Safetac technology and set the stage for a 
whole range of wound care products that not only helped wound healing, but also drastically 
reduced pain and trauma for patients during dressing changes. 

Today, Mölnlycke HC has two divisions:  Surgical and Wound Care.  Together, these 
divisions produce products that help both health care professionals and patients in the hospital 
and during patients’ recovery. 

Wound Care’s innovation continued and in 2008, Mölnlycke HC acquired Pharmaset, a 
leading French manufacturer of single-use kits for surgical interventions.  In 2009, Mölnlycke 
HC acquired JKT, a leading Polish provider of single-use hospital clothing and surgical supplies. 

           In 2010, the Wound Care division launched Avance™, a negative pressure wound 
treatment. This was also the year when Mölnlycke HC acquired Rynel, a developer and 
manufacturer of specialty hydrophilic polyurethane foam products in the United States. 

One of Mölnlycke HC’s divisions, Surgical, is a full-line supplier of single-use products 
for the operating room. The division offers drapes, gowns, headgear and face masks, as well as 
scrub-suits. Surgical also has a line of antiseptics as well as surgical gloves with the proven 
highest quality in the business. Surgical also offers everything a surgical team needs for a given 
procedure on a single tray called ProcedurePak—increasing hospital efficiency by reducing set-
up time in the operating room, making the ordering and stock-taking processes easier, and 
reducing waste. 

Mölnlycke HC’s other division, Wound Care, provides products that promote wound 
healing, including a whole range of wound dressings and bandages and more traditional retention 
and compression products. Wound Care also has emollient products that help skin conditions 
such as eczema and psoriasis. 

           During the last few years, Mölnlycke HC  has moved into biological and negative 
pressure wound treatments including Xelma, a biological wound treatment that provides an 
extra-cellular matrix protein that cells attach themselves to, which then kick-starts the wound 



4 
 

healing process. The company’s negative pressure solution, Avance, promotes wound healing by 
creating negative pressure in the wound cavity. 

Mölnlycke HC has manufacturing plants in nine (9) different countries. Production for 
wound care products currently takes place in Finland, the United Kingdom, and the United 
States. Surgical production takes place in Malaysia, Thailand, the Czech Republic, France, 
Poland, and Belgium.  

With the U.S. market becoming a growing market for Mölnlycke HC, the company is 
investing in manufacturing facilities in the U.S.  The company currently has a manufacturing 
facility in Wiscasset, Maine, the Brunswick, Maine site that is under construction, and a 
distribution center in Anderson, South Carolina.  Mölnlycke Manufacturing US, LLC, located in 
Brunswick, Maine, is owned by Mölnlycke Health Care US, LLC which is located in Norcross, 
GA.  Mölnlycke Health Care US, LLC is owned by Mölnlycke Health Care AB which is 
headquartered in Gothenburg, Sweden and is the overall entity.    

The project that was initially envisioned for Brunswick has expanded since discussions 
began with the State of Maine and the Town of Brunswick in the second half of 2010.  The 
Brunswick manufacturing facility will include construction of a $14.5 million dollar building and 
an over $36 million investment in equipment and other personal property.  The investment in 
Brunswick will not negatively impact the Wiscasset facility.  In fact it will serve to secure that 
facility since the products developed in Wiscasset are “raw materials” that will be used in the 
products to be manufactured in Brunswick.  Additionally, the Brunswick manufacturing facility 
is expected to create 45 to 87 quality jobs with medical insurance and ERISA benefits.  Total 
wage and salary estimates approach $2 million annually. 

B.        Mölnlycke Manufacturing: Request for Tax Increment Financing Assistance  

             Representatives of the entity that is now Mölnlycke Manufacturing US, LLC (hereinafter 
referred to as “Mölnlycke Manufacturing” or the “company”) first approached the State of Maine 
and the Town of Brunswick in the second half of 2010 to explore the possibility of the company 
locating a new wound care product manufacturing facility in Brunswick—specifically at 
Brunswick Landing.   

Since Mölnlycke was then looking at different locations around the world (and around 
Maine) to locate the next factory, it was imperative that the State of Maine, the Town of 
Brunswick and the Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority (“MRRA”) work together, 
along with the local existing Mölnlycke Manufacturing site in Wiscasset, to come up with the 
best proposal to the Mölnlycke HC Board of Directors as to why the company should locate the 
new factory in Brunswick.  Mölnlycke Manufacturing brought the Maine Department of 
Economic and Community Development (“DECD”) into the discussion, and DECD personnel 
laid out all of the benefits and enhancements for the Company to locate the new factory in 
Maine.  Among those benefits and enhancements was the expectation for receiving Tax 
Increment Financing (“TIF”) benefits regardless of which site in Maine was ultimately selected.  
The Mölnlycke Board later approved the Brunswick location based on a presentation that 
included all of the estimated economics of the project, including a projected TIF benefit. 



5 
 

Since those early discussions, the company reviewed its manufacturing strategy to 
support the continuing growth of the wound care business.  Based on that review, Mölnlycke 
made the decision to greatly increase the level of capacity, automation and overall technology of 
the production machines slated for Brunswick.  The machine upgrades and improvements 
created the need to also increase the clean room production space within the new Brunswick 
facility.  This expansion of manufacturing capability necessitated additional improvements and 
upgrades to the overall electrical system for the facility, multiple HVAC systems, supporting 
computer systems and software, and other miscellaneous support systems.  The equipment 
upgrades also created the need for more skilled employees to support this investment in 
sophisticated equipment. 
 
                Mölnlycke Manufacturing is requesting that the Town of Brunswick provide tax 
increment financing assistance for the company to assist with the development of its Brunswick 
manufacturing facility.  This project fits in with the larger effort to redevelop the 1.7 million 
square feet of industrial, commercial and professional office space at the former Naval Air 
Station Brunswick (“NASB”), and is in accordance with the adopted Reuse Master Plan for NAS 
Brunswick (the “Reuse Master Plan”).  The proposed tax increment financing district is an 19.4-
acre collection of parcels within the former NAS Brunswick. It encompasses the “block” 
surrounded by Pegasus, Terminal Drive, Admiral Fitch Ave and Seahawk Avenue. Creating a tax 
increment financing district known as the Mölnlycke Manufacturing  Municipal Development 
and Tax Increment Financing District (the “District”), which will be developed into a world class 
manufacturing facility, will enhance the competitiveness of the Midcoast region and the State of 
Maine to attract, grow and create new businesses in the industry clusters identified in the Reuse 
Master Plan.  These industries include: composite manufacturing, information technology, 
alternative energy development, research, development and manufacturing and tourism and 
convention businesses in the Midcoast region.   

In furtherance of these goals, the Town plans to capture zero percent (0%) in year one 
and all one hundred percent (100%) of the increased assessed real and taxable personal property 
value located in the District in years 2 through 30 and use such revenues (the “TIF Revenues”) to 
fund infrastructure improvements, public safety equipment and its existing Downtown TIF 
District, all as further described in Table 1 herein.  The Town will also enter into a 20-year credit 
enhancement agreement with Mölnlycke Manufacturing (the “Mölnlycke Manufacturing CEA”), 
pursuant to which the Town will reimburse to Mölnlycke Manufacturing, for each of the 20 years 
of the Mölnlycke Manufacturing CEA.  Mölnlycke’s annual percentage share of the Tax 
Increment Revenues will be tied to the number of full-time equivalent (“FTE”) employees on 
Mölnlycke’s payroll who are eligible for employment benefits.  Each year, Mölnlycke will report 
the company’s FTE employment count to the Town on a quarterly basis on the form attached to 
the Mölnlycke Manufacturing CEA as Attachment 1.  Each January during the term of the CEA, 
the Town will calculate the average number of FTE employees reported by Mölnlycke during the 
prior calendar year in order to determine Mölnlycke’s percentage share of the Tax Increment 
Revenues for following Tax Year.  Using this calculation, the Town will allocate an amount of 
Tax Increment Revenues to Mölnlycke as follows:  (i) a base minimum of thirty-five percent 
(35%) of the Tax Increment Revenues each year; and (ii) an additional one-half percent (0.5%) 
of the Tax Increment Revenues for each additional FTE job created by Mölnlycke in excess of 
forty-five (45) FTE jobs.  Regardless of the number of FTE employees employed by Mölnlycke, 
the Tax Increment Revenues reimbursement to Mölnlycke shall not exceed fifty-five percent 



6 
 

(55%) of the Tax Increment Revenues in any one year.  The District is to be in place for a total of 
thirty (30) years.  

C. Designation of TIF District   

                In designating the District and adopting this Development Program, the Town can 
accomplish the following goals: 

• Maintain existing tax revenues;  

• Realize new tax revenues generated by new development within the District; 

• Create long-term, stable employment opportunities for areas residents; 

• Advance redevelopment of the form Naval Air Station Brunswick by attracting 
businesses investment and promoting the economic viability and sustainability of the 
general economy of the Town, and the Midcoast Maine region; and  

• Improve the overall economy of the State of Maine. 

In addition, by creating the District, the Town will “shelter” the increase in municipal 
valuation that development in the District will bring about.  This is particularly significant, 
because the original assessed value of the District was zero dollars ($0) as of March 31, 2012 
(April 1, 2011).  This tax shelter will mitigate the adverse effect that the District’s increased 
assessed property value would have on the Town’s share of state aid to education, municipal 
revenue sharing and its county tax assessment.  An estimate of the tax shelter benefit is shown as 
Exhibit D-2 attached hereto.   

II.      Development Program Narrative 
 

A. The Projects 
 

1. Municipal Projects 
                 

Development within the District will provide a revenue source for the Town’s economic 
development projects.  The Town plans to use its portion of the TIF Revenues for several 
projects that will enhance the exposure and viability of the Town as a vibrant place to locate a 
business, to visit and to work.  The Town plans to invest in its infrastructure by improving roads 
leading to and from the District, purchasing new public safety equipment needed to provide 
public safety services to the District and the former NAS Brunswick, and by contributing TIF 
Revenues to fund projects set forth in the Town’s existing Downtown TIF District.  The Town 
plans to use of TIF Revenues as part of its overall plan to exploit its location and resources to 
attract and retain businesses that want to take advantage of Brunswick’s business-friendly 
location at the gateway to the Midcoast while offering their employees a rich, dynamic and high 
quality of life.  Please see Table 1 herein for a complete list of authorized projects and their 
respective cost estimates. 
 



7 
 

TABLE 1 
Town of Brunswick’s Project Development Costs 

 
Project  Cost Estimate Statutory Cite 

 
Road Improvements:  The Town will use TIF 
funds to improve and maintain Town-owned roads 
and streets that form the transportation routes most 
directly impacted by the creation of the District 
and the redevelopment of the former Naval Air 
Station Brunswick (NASB).  Improvements to the 
designated portions of the roads and streets 
identified below are directly related to and made 
necessary by the redevelopment of the NASB and 
the creation of the District, which will 
significantly increase the amount of commercial 
traffic going to/from the District from the Town’s 
Downtown and other locations throughout the 
Town.  Local road/street reconstruction is 
estimated to cost $175,000/mile (approximately 
36.55 miles), and individual projects are expected 
to have a 10-year lifespan. 
 
1. River Road (5.01 miles) 
2. Bath Road (4.75 miles) 
3. Federal Street (.59 miles) 
4. McKeen Street (1.59 miles) 
5. Maine Street (2.22 miles) 
6. Pleasant Hill Road (4.12 miles) 
7. Jordan Avenue (1.55 miles) 
8. Mere Point Road (5.46 miles) 
9. Middle Bay Road (1.16 miles) 
10. Durham Road (3.44 miles) 
11. Casco Road (1.92 miles) 
12. Union Street  (.77 miles) 
13. Church Road (1.93 miles) 
14. Bunganuc Road (2.04 miles) 
 

 
$640,000/year 

 
30-A M.R.S.A. § 5225(1)(B)(1) 



8 
 

Project  Cost Estimate Statutory Cite 
 
Public Safety Improvements:  As a direct result of 
the redevelopment of the NASB and the creation 
of the District, the Town will now be required to 
purchase public safety equipment in the form of 
fire trucks, police cars and ambulances in order to 
provide public safety services to the businesses 
locating in the former NASB and the District.  
Prior to the closure of the NASB, these areas were 
under the jurisdiction of the federal government, 
and did not receive (or require) Town-provided 
police, fire and rescue services.  Since the Town’s 
need to purchase additional public safety vehicles 
(police, fire and rescue vehicles) is directly related 
to and made necessary by the redevelopment of 
the former NASB and the District, the Town will 
use TIF funds to cover annual debt service on four 
(4) public safety vehicles each year.  
 

 
$130,000/year 

 
30-A M.R.S.A. § 5225(1)(B)(2) 

 
Downtown TIF Projects:  The Town will use TIF 
funds to mitigate adverse impacts of the District 
on the Town’s downtown area by funding projects 
described in the 2010 Brunswick Downtown 
Municipal Development and Tax Increment 
Financing District Development Program, as it 
may be amended from time to time; provided that 
the provisions of 30-A M.R.S.A. Sec. 
5225(1)(B)(3) (Supp. 2011) must continue to be 
met, as is the case currently.  Specifically any 
public facilities and improvements funded through 
the Downtown TIF must be located within the 
Downtown TIF District, and the entire tax 
increment from the Downtown TIF must be 
committed to the development program for the 
Downtown TIF.  
 

 
$100,000/year 

 
30-A M.R.S.A. § 5225(1)(B)(3) 

Brunswick Downtown Association:  The Town 
will be authorized to provide annual funding to the 
Brunswick Downtown Association to help fund 
economic development programs or events 
designed to foster economic development within 
the Town’s Downtown, or to help fund the 
marketing of the Town as a business location. 
 

 
$100,000/year 

 
30-A M.R.S.A. § 5225(1)(C)(1) 
 
 



9 
 

Project  Cost Estimate Statutory Cite 
 
Professional & Administrative Costs:  The Town 
will fund professional services costs and 
administrative costs (i.e., pro rata portions of the 
Town Assessor, Town Manager and Business 
Development Manager salaries) related to the 
negotiation and completion of this development 
program and the credit enhancement agreement 
with Mölnlycke Health Care Company, and the 
ongoing administration of the Town’s TIF 
programs.   
 

 
$20,000/year 

 
 

 
30-A M.R.S.A. § 5225(1)(A)(4) 
and (5) 

 
2. Mölnlycke Manufacturing Projects 

 
Pursuant to the terms of the Mölnlycke Manufacturing CEA, Mölnlycke will be obligated 

to use payments made to it by the Town to fund development of its facilities within District 
boundaries to include: site improvements, building construction, machinery and equipment 
purchases, project financing and employee training.   
 

D. Strategic Growth and Development 
 
                The Town’s designation of the TIF District and pursuit of this Development Program 
constitute a good and valid public purpose pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30-A because it 
represents a substantial contribution to the economic well-being of both the Town and the 
Midcoast Maine Region, by providing jobs, contributing to property taxes and diversifying the 
region’s economic base.  
 
 C. The Development District  

1. Physical Description 

The proposed District will encompass a 19.4-acre portion of the former NASB.  The 
District is encompassed bordered by Pegasus, Terminal Drive, Admiral Fitch Avenue and 
Seahawk Avenue. Maps of the proposed District are presented in Exhibit A.   

2. Statutory Requirements and Thresholds 

The Statutory Requirements and Threshold limits addressing the conditions for approval 
mandated by 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5223(3) are set forth in Exhibit B.   

3. Duration of the Program 

The District and will begin with the Town’s 2012-2013 fiscal year and will continue for a 
total of thirty (30) years, culminating  in fiscal year 2041-2042.   

4. Certification of Original Assessed Value 



10 
 

 The original assessed value of the District was zero dollars ($0) as of March 31, 2012 
(April 1, 2011).  The Assessor’s Certificate of Original Assessed Value is included as Exhibit D. 
 
 D. The Development Program 
 

The Town’s designation of the District and adoption of this Development Program create 
a single municipal TIF district in order to capture the value of the real and taxable personal 
property improvements made within the District and enable the use of TIF Revenues for various 
municipal economic development projects and company investment.     

 
Under this Development Program, the Town will capture zero percent (0%) in year one 

and one hundred percent (100%) in all remaining years, of the increased assessed real and 
taxable personal property value over the original assessed property value of the District and 
retain the tax revenues generated by the captured assessed real and taxable personal property 
value for designated economic development purposes.   

 
The Town will enter into a twenty (20) year credit enhancement agreement with 

Mölnlycke Manufacturing beginning in year two (2013-2014) of the TIF term.  The calculation 
and allocation of TIF Revenues is more specifically described below in Section IV – Financial 
Plan. 

 
By adopting this Development Program, the Town will underscore Brunswick’s growing 

reputation as a commercial hub and desirable place in which to locate a business; support quality 
economic development in Brunswick by entering into a credit enhancement arrangement with the 
company; and shelter the new municipal real and taxable personal property value from impacting 
the overall State valuation for the Town, thereby minimizing (a) decreases in the Town’s State 
school subsidy and State revenue sharing, and (b) potential increases in the Town’s county tax 
assessments. 

 
Further, approval of this Development Program and the designation of the District will 

have a neutral or positive impact on the existing tax base, because, given that the original 
assessed value of the entire District is zero dollars ($0), all of the assessed value within the 
District will be captured.  In addition, at the end of the 30-year term of this Development 
Program, the Town will emerge with a substantial amount of new real and taxable personal 
property value to add to its municipal tax base.  Additionally, the company investment includes 
$34 million in manufacturing equipment.  This equipment is not captured within TIF program 
and will result in a BETE reimbursement from the State of Maine to the Town for a portion of 
the taxable value.  The annual BETE reimbursement value is estimated to be $297,400. 
 

This Development Program is structured and proposed pursuant to Chapter 206 of 
Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended (the “TIF Statute”).  Subsequent to a 
Public Hearing and Town Council vote, adoption of this Development Program will be effective 
upon approval by DECD. 

 



11 
 

E. Improvements to the Public Infrastructure 
 
As further set forth in Table 1, the Town will use certain TIF Revenues for road 

improvements set forth as projects within the approved in the Brunswick Downtown TIF, and 
improvements made necessary by but outside of the District. 

 
F. Operational Components 
 
 1. Public Facilities 
 
The Town plans to use a percentage of the TIF Revenues to fund certain projects 

approved within the existing Downtown TIF District.  
 
 2. Commercial Improvements Financed Through Development Program 
 
Mölnlycke Manufacturing plans to complete construction of a 79,000 square foot $14.5 

million facility within the District with over $34 million in manufacturing equipment and 
planned occupancy of beginning in February, 2013.  TIF revenues will also be used to help fund 
financing costs, real property assembly costs and professional services associated with the 
project.  

 
3. Relocation of Displaced Persons. 

 
Not applicable. 
 
 4. Transportation Improvements 
 
The Town will fund road improvements made necessary by the increased traffic to the 

District from other parts of the Town. 
 
 5. Environmental Controls 
 
The improvements made under this Development Program will meet or exceed all 

federal, state and local environmental laws, regulations and ordinances and will comply with all 
applicable land use requirements for the Town. 

 
 6. Plan of Operation 
 

 All of the real and personal property improvements made by the company and located 
within the District will at all times be owned by the Company or a related entity. 
 
 During the term of the District, the Town Manager or his designee will be responsible for 
all administrative matters within the purview of the Town concerning the implementation and 
operation of the District. 



12 
 

III. Financial Plan 

The District will encompass four parcels for a total of 19.4 acres of property.  The 
collective original assessed value of the property in the District was zero dollars ($0) as of March 
31, 2012 (April 1, 2011).  The Town will capture zero percent (0%) in year one and one-hundred 
percent (100%) of the increased assessed value for the balance of the 30-year term of the 
District.  The TIF Revenues so collected will fund and/or contribute to the funding of the 
approved municipal projects, including each of the projects described on Table 1 hereof, which 
collectively increase the Town’s ability to stand out in a competitive marketplace as a dynamic 
municipality in which to grow a business.  All taxable real and taxable personal property value 
captured in the District will be added to the general tax rolls at the end of the TIF term.  The 
Town will also enter into a 20-year credit enhancement agreement with Molnlyke 
Manufacturing.  Mölnlycke’s annual percentage share of the Tax Increment Revenues will be 
tied to the number of full-time equivalent (“FTE”) employees on Mölnlycke’s payroll who are 
eligible for employment benefits.  Each year, Mölnlycke will report the company’s FTE 
employment count to the Town on a quarterly basis on the form attached to the Mölnlycke 
Manufacturing CEA as Attachment 1.  Each January during the term of the CEA, the Town will 
calculate the average number of FTE employees reported by Mölnlycke during the prior calendar 
year in order to determine Mölnlycke’s percentage share of the Tax Increment Revenues for 
following Tax Year.  Using this calculation, the Town will allocate an amount of Tax Increment 
Revenues to Mölnlycke as follows:  (i) a base minimum of thirty-five percent (35%) of the Tax 
Increment Revenues each year; and (ii) an additional one-half percent (0.5%) of the Tax 
Increment Revenues for each additional FTE job created by Mölnlycke in excess of forty-five 
(45) FTE jobs.  Regardless of the number of FTE employees employed by Mölnlycke, the Tax 
Increment Revenues reimbursement to Mölnlycke shall not exceed fifty-five percent (55%) of 
the Tax Increment Revenues in any one year.   

 
Upon each payment of property taxes by the Company, the Town will deposit into a 

development program fund the entirety of the property tax payments constituting TIF Revenues 
(the “Development Program Fund”).  The Development Program Fund is pledged to and charged 
with the payment of the project costs in the manner provided in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5227(3).  The 
Development Program Fund consists of two segregated accounts, a sinking fund account 
(“Sinking Fund Account”) and a project cost account (the “Project Cost Account”).  The Town 
will deposit the TIF Revenues necessary to pay debt service on any bonds issued to pay for 
District improvements, if any, into the Sinking Fund Account.  The money in this account is 
pledged to and charged with the payment of interest and principal on municipal indebtedness 
related to the improvements in the District.  The Town will deposit any additional TIF Revenues 
into (a) a subaccount or subaccounts of the Project Cost Account to be used for credit 
enhancement payments to the Company pursuant to the Mölnlycke Manufacturing CEA and/or 
(b) to a subaccount of the Project Cost Account for other approved municipal projects outlined in 
this Development Program and not financed with Town indebtedness. 

Estimates of the increased assessed property values of the District, the anticipated TIF 
Revenues generated by the District and projected BETE reimbursements are shown in Exhibit D-
1.  The estimated tax shifts are shown in Exhibit D-2.  



13 
 

A. Costs and Sources of Revenues 

Mölnlycke Manufacturing will pay for and/or finance all private improvements located 
within the District through private sources.    

B. Public Indebtedness 

 None of the project costs will be met through public indebtedness.   
  

IV. Financial Data 

 The District satisfies all of the statutory requirements and thresholds set forth in Section 
5223(3) of the TIF Statute, as demonstrated in Exhibit B. 
 
 Certification by the Town’s Tax Assessor of the original assessed value of the District is 
set forth in Exhibit C. 

V. Tax Shifts 

 In accordance with the TIF Statute, the table set forth in Exhibit D-2 identifies the tax 
shifts that the Town estimates will result during the term of the District.  
 
VI. Municipal Approvals 
 

A. Notice of Public Hearing 
 

 Attached as Exhibit E is a copy of the Notice of Public Hearing regarding the 
establishment of the Mölnlycke Manufacturing Municipal Development and Tax Increment 
Financing District and adoption of this Development Program for the District, published in the 
Times Record, a newspaper of general circulation in the Town, on November --, 2012, a date at 
least ten (10) days prior to the public hearing.  The public hearing on the District designation and 
Development Program was held on December 3, 2012, in accordance with the requirements of 
30-A M.R.S.A. § 5226(1).   
 

B. Minutes of Public Hearing Held by Town Council 
 

 Attached as Exhibit F is a certified copy of the minutes of the public hearing held on 
December 3, 2012, at which time the proposed District and Development Program were 
discussed by the public.    

  
C. Authorizing Votes 
 

 Attached as Exhibit G is a copy of the Brunswick Town Council Order designating the 
District and adopting this Development Program, which Order was adopted by the Council at a 
meeting of the Council duly called and held on December 3, 2012.



14 
 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

TIF District Map 
Location Map 

 
 
 

 



15 
 

Exhibit B 
STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS & THRESHOLDS 

A. ACRE LIMITATION          BRUNSWICK EXECUTIVE AIRPORT 

1. Total Acreage of Municipality  
28,800 

2. Total Acreage of Proposed Municipal TIF District  
19.4 

3. Total Downtown acres contained in the Proposed Municipal TIF District 
 

 
0 

 4. Total Transit acres contained in the Proposed Municipal TIF District  
0 

5. Total acreage of Proposed Municipal TIF District counted towards 2% cap (A2-A3-A4)  
19.4 

6. Percentage of total acreage in proposed municipal TIF District (cannot exceed 2%) Divide A5 by A1  
0.06% 

7. Total acreage of all existing and proposed municipal TIF districts in the municipality. Add A2 to sum of 
all existing TIF district acreage.  (* as of December 3, 2012) 

Existing      183.63 
Mölnlycke   19.4_ 
  

Total 203.03      

8. Total acreage of an existing or Proposed Downtown TIF District in the municipality. 
 

89.97 

9. Total acreage of all existing Pine Tree Development Zone TIF Districts in the municipality.  
0 

10. Total acreage of all existing or Proposed Transit TIF Districts in the municipality.  
0 

11. Total acreage of all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts in the municipality counted toward 
5% cap. Subtract A8+A9+A10 from A7. 

 
113.06 

12. Percentage of total acreage in all existing and proposed Municipal TIF Districts (cannot exceed 5%) 
Divide A11 by A1. 

 

 
0.39% 

13. Total Acreage of all real property in the Proposed Municipal TIF District that is:  
 
 
 

(Note: a, b, or c must be at least 25%) Acres % 
a. Blighted                                                   (Divide acres by 

A2) 
  

b.    In need of rehabilitation/conservation     (Divide acres by 
A2) 

  
c.     Suitable for industrial/commercial site   (Divide acres by 
A2) 

19.4 100% 
TOTAL 19.4 100% 

B. VALUATION LIMITATION 

1. Total Aggregate Value of Municipality (TAV)   
Use most recent April 1st 

1,332,368,190 

2. Original Assessed Value (OAV) of Proposed Municipal TIF District.  
Use March 31st of tax year preceding date of municipal designation 

0 

3. Total OAV of all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts in the municipality.  
Add b2 to sum of all existing TIF district OAVs  

 
80,803,500 

4. OAV of an existing or proposed Downtown TIF District in the municipality. 71,082,500 

5. OAV of all existing Pine Tree Development Zone TIF Districts in the municipality. 
 

 
0 

6. OAV of all existing or Proposed Transit TIF Districts in the municipality.  
0 



16 
 

7. Total OAV of all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts in the municipality counted toward 5% cap 
Subtract B4+B5+B6 from B3 

 
9,721,000 

8. Percentage of total OAV to TAV in all existing and Proposed Municipal TIF Districts (cannot exceed 5%) 
Divide B7 by B1 

 
.73% 

 
 



17 
 

 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT C 

Assessor’s Certificate 
 
 

 



18 
 

EXHIBIT D-1 
TIF Revenue Projections 

 

Ta
x 

Ye
ar

G
ro

ss
 N

ew
 

Ta
xe

s
No

n-
BE

TE
BE

TE
 Q

ua
lif

ie
d 

No
n-

BE
TE

BE
TE

 Q
ua

lif
ie

d 
G

ro
ss

R
ea

l
P

er
so

na
l

P
er

so
na

l
R

ea
l 

P
er

so
na

l
P

er
so

na
l

A
nn

ua
l 

M
il

Ne
w

(4
/1

-3
/3

1)
P

ro
pe

rty
  P

ro
pe

rty
 

  P
ro

pe
rty

P
ro

pe
rty

P
ro

pe
rty

P
ro

pe
rty

A
ss

es
se

d 
V

al
ue

$ 
A

m
ou

nt
R

at
e

Ta
xe

s

2,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
1

20
12

-2
01

3
12

,4
82

,0
00

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

,4
82

,0
00

$ 
   

 
1,

40
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

.9
0

34
,8

60
$ 

   
   

  
2

20
13

-2
01

4
1,

97
5,

00
0

$ 
   

 
34

,1
26

,0
00

$ 
   

   
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

25
2,

42
1

$ 
   

   
 

3
20

13
-2

01
5

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
4

20
15

-2
01

6
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

5
20

16
-2

01
7

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
6

20
17

-2
01

8
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

7
20

18
-2

01
9

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
8

20
19

-2
02

0
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

9
20

20
-2

02
1

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
10

20
21

-2
02

2
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

11
20

22
-2

02
3

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
12

20
23

-2
02

4
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

13
20

24
-2

02
5

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
14

20
25

-2
02

6
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

15
20

26
-2

02
7

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
16

20
27

-2
02

8
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

17
20

28
-2

02
9

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
18

20
29

-2
03

0
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

19
20

30
-2

03
1

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
20

20
31

-2
03

2
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

21
20

32
-2

03
3

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
22

20
33

-2
03

4
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

23
20

34
-2

03
5

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
24

20
35

-2
03

6
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

25
20

36
-2

03
7

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
26

20
37

-2
03

8
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

27
20

38
-2

03
9

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
28

20
39

-2
04

0
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

29
20

40
-2

04
1

50
,5

83
,0

00
$ 

   
 

10
,1

37
,4

00
$ 

   
  

1,
38

2,
50

0.
00

$ 
  

23
,8

88
,2

00
$ 

   
  

35
,4

08
,1

00
$ 

   
  

10
0%

11
,5

19
,9

00
$ 

   
 

24
.9

0
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

 
30

20
41

-2
04

2
50

,5
83

,0
00

$ 
   

 
10

,1
37

,4
00

$ 
   

  
1,

38
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

  
23

,8
88

,2
00

$ 
   

  
35

,4
08

,1
00

$ 
   

  
10

0%
11

,5
19

,9
00

$ 
   

 
24

.9
0

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
 

31
20

42
-2

04
3

32
20

43
-2

04
4

Cu
m

ul
at

iv
e

14
,4

82
,0

00
$ 

   
   

##
##

##
##

##
##

#
29

53
84

60
00

0%
33

40
94

60
00

0%
33

26
94

60
00

0%
8,

31
8,

94
1

$ 
   

 
Av

g.
 A

nn
ua

l
9,

84
6,

15
3

$ 
   

   
 

11
,1

36
,4

87
$ 

   
  

11
,0

89
,8

20
$ 

   
 

27
7,

29
8

$ 
   

   
 

AS
SU

M
PT

IO
NS

Ye
ar

s 
in

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n

30
M

ill
 R

at
e 

(p
er

 th
ou

sa
nd

)
24

.9
0

O
rig

in
al

 A
ss

es
se

d 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

 
$0

As
se

ss
m

en
t R

at
io

 =
 7

0%
 p

er
 A

ss
es

so
r

B
E

TE
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t e
st

im
at

ed
 a

t 5
0%

 o
f t

ax
ab

le
 v

al
ue

. 
As

se
ss

ed
 v

al
ue

s 
he

ld
 c

on
st

an
t: 

no
 a

pp
re

ci
at

io
n 

or
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

.
Ye

llo
w

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 d

ep
ic

ts
 y

ea
rs

 o
f c

re
di

t e
nh

an
ce

m
en

t
Ye

ar
s 

31
 a

nd
 3

2 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r t

ax
 s

hi
ft 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y.
  

Es
tim

at
ed

 A
nn

ua
l I

nv
es

tm
en

t

[o
f N

on
-B

E
TE

 V
al

ua
tio

n]

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t

%

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 
An

nu
al

 A
ss

es
ed

 V
al

ue
An

nu
al

 A
ss

es
se

d 
Va

lu
e 

Re
ta

in
ed



19 
 

EXHIBIT D-1 
TIF Revenue Projections 

p.2 
TI

F
G

en
er

al
BE

TE
TI

F 
%

TI
F

To
w

n
Pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

%
Re

ve
nu

es
Re

ve
nu

es
Fu

nd
Re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t

Re
ve

nu
es

Re
ve

nu
es

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

34
,8

60
$ 

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

10
0.

0%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
34

,8
60

$ 
   

   
  

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
2,

42
1

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

65
.0

%
16

4,
07

4
$ 

   
   

16
4,

07
4

$ 
   

   
 

45
35

.0
%

88
,3

47
$ 

   
   

   
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
7,

40
8

$ 
   

   
  

65
.0

%
18

6,
44

9
$ 

   
   

48
3,

85
7

$ 
   

   
 

45
35

.0
%

10
0,

39
6

$ 
   

   
 

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
54

.5
%

15
6,

33
1

$ 
   

   
45

3,
73

9
$ 

   
   

 
66

45
.5

%
13

0,
51

4
$ 

   
   

 
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
7,

40
8

$ 
   

   
  

54
.5

%
15

6,
33

1
$ 

   
   

45
3,

73
9

$ 
   

   
 

66
45

.5
%

13
0,

51
4

$ 
   

   
 

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
45

.0
%

12
9,

08
0

$ 
   

   
42

6,
48

8
$ 

   
   

 
87

55
.0

%
15

7,
76

5
$ 

   
   

 
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
7,

40
8

$ 
   

   
  

45
.0

%
12

9,
08

0
$ 

   
   

42
6,

48
8

$ 
   

   
 

87
55

.0
%

15
7,

76
5

$ 
   

   
 

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
45

.0
%

12
9,

08
0

$ 
   

   
42

6,
48

8
$ 

   
   

 
87

55
.0

%
15

7,
76

5
$ 

   
   

 
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
7,

40
8

$ 
   

   
  

45
.0

%
12

9,
08

0
$ 

   
   

42
6,

48
8

$ 
   

   
 

87
55

.0
%

15
7,

76
5

$ 
   

   
 

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
45

.0
%

12
9,

08
0

$ 
   

   
42

6,
48

8
$ 

   
   

 
87

55
.0

%
15

7,
76

5
$ 

   
   

 
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
7,

40
8

$ 
   

   
  

45
.0

%
12

9,
08

0
$ 

   
   

42
6,

48
8

$ 
   

   
 

87
55

.0
%

15
7,

76
5

$ 
   

   
 

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
45

.0
%

12
9,

08
0

$ 
   

   
42

6,
48

8
$ 

   
   

 
87

55
.0

%
15

7,
76

5
$ 

   
   

 
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
7,

40
8

$ 
   

   
  

45
.0

%
12

9,
08

0
$ 

   
   

42
6,

48
8

$ 
   

   
 

87
55

.0
%

15
7,

76
5

$ 
   

   
 

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
45

.0
%

12
9,

08
0

$ 
   

   
42

6,
48

8
$ 

   
   

 
87

55
.0

%
15

7,
76

5
$ 

   
   

 
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
7,

40
8

$ 
   

   
  

45
.0

%
12

9,
08

0
$ 

   
   

42
6,

48
8

$ 
   

   
 

87
55

.0
%

15
7,

76
5

$ 
   

   
 

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
45

.0
%

12
9,

08
0

$ 
   

   
42

6,
48

8
$ 

   
   

 
87

55
.0

%
15

7,
76

5
$ 

   
   

 
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
7,

40
8

$ 
   

   
  

45
.0

%
12

9,
08

0
$ 

   
   

42
6,

48
8

$ 
   

   
 

87
55

.0
%

15
7,

76
5

$ 
   

   
 

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
45

.0
%

12
9,

08
0

$ 
   

   
42

6,
48

8
$ 

   
   

 
87

55
.0

%
15

7,
76

5
$ 

   
   

 
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
7,

40
8

$ 
   

   
  

45
.0

%
12

9,
08

0
$ 

   
   

42
6,

48
8

$ 
   

   
 

87
55

.0
%

15
7,

76
5

$ 
   

   
 

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
45

.0
%

12
9,

08
0

$ 
   

   
42

6,
48

8
$ 

   
   

 
87

55
.0

%
15

7,
76

5
$ 

   
   

 
28

6,
84

5
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
  

29
7,

40
8

$ 
   

   
  

45
.0

%
12

9,
08

0
$ 

   
   

42
6,

48
8

$ 
   

   
 

87
55

.0
%

15
7,

76
5

$ 
   

   
 

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
10

0.
0%

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
58

4,
25

3
$ 

   
   

 
87

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
10

0.
0%

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
58

4,
25

3
$ 

   
   

 
87

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
10

0.
0%

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
58

4,
25

3
$ 

   
   

 
87

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
10

0.
0%

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
58

4,
25

3
$ 

   
   

 
87

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
10

0.
0%

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
58

4,
25

3
$ 

   
   

 
87

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
10

0.
0%

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
58

4,
25

3
$ 

   
   

 
87

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
10

0.
0%

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
58

4,
25

3
$ 

   
   

 
87

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
10

0.
0%

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
58

4,
25

3
$ 

   
   

 
87

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

  
29

7,
40

8
$ 

   
   

  
10

0.
0%

28
6,

84
5

$ 
   

   
58

4,
25

3
$ 

   
   

 
87

0.
0%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

8,
28

4,
08

1
$ 

   
34

,8
60

$ 
  

8,
36

2,
28

7
$ 

   
  

5,
31

0,
07

3
$ 

   
13

,6
72

,3
59

$ 
  

2,
97

4,
00

8
$ 

   
 

27
6,

13
6

$ 
   

   
1,

16
2

$ 
   

 
27

8,
74

3
$ 

   
   

  
17

7,
00

2
$ 

   
   

45
5,

74
5

$ 
   

   
 

99
,1

34
$ 

   
   

   

AS
SU

M
PT

IO
NS

Co
m

pa
ny

 2
0-

ye
ar

 a
ve

ra
ge

 a
nn

ua
l=

 $
   

   
 1

48
,7

00
 

Ye
ar

s 
in

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n

30
M

ill
 R

at
e 

(p
er

 th
ou

sa
nd

)
24

.9
0

O
rig

in
al

 A
ss

es
se

d 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

 
$0

As
se

ss
m

en
t R

at
io

 =
 7

0%
 p

er
 A

ss
es

so
r

B
E

TE
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t e
st

im
at

ed
 a

t 5
0%

 o
f t

ax
ab

le
 v

al
ue

. 
As

se
ss

ed
 v

al
ue

s 
he

ld
 c

on
st

an
t: 

no
 a

pp
re

ci
at

io
n 

or
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

.
Ye

llo
w

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 d

ep
ic

ts
 y

ea
rs

 o
f c

re
di

t e
nh

an
ce

m
en

t
Ye

ar
s 

31
 a

nd
 3

2 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r t

ax
 s

hi
ft 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y.
  



20 
 

EXHIBIT D-2 
Tax Shift Calculations 

 

Tax Year
EPS Revenue County Total

Education Sharing Tax Tax
(4/1-3/31) Shift Shift Shift Shift

1 2012-2013 -$             -$             -$          -$               
2 2013-2014 -$             -$             -$          -$               
3 2013-2015 -$             0$               -$          0$                  
4 2015-2016 111,367$      15,213$       8,437$       135,017$        
5 2016-2017 126,554$      17,271$       9,838$       153,664$        
6 2017-2018 126,554$      17,271$       10,096$     153,921$        
7 2018-2019 126,554$      17,271$       10,360$     154,185$        
8 2019-2020 126,554$      17,271$       10,631$     154,456$        
9 2020-2021 126,554$      17,271$       10,909$     154,735$        
10 2021-2022 126,554$      17,271$       11,194$     155,020$        
11 2022-2023 126,554$      17,271$       11,487$     155,313$        
12 2023-2024 126,554$      17,271$       11,788$     155,613$        
13 2024-2025 126,554$      17,271$       12,096$     155,922$        
14 2025-2026 126,554$      17,271$       12,412$     156,238$        
15 2026-2027 126,554$      17,271$       12,737$     156,563$        
16 2027-2028 126,554$      17,271$       13,070$     156,896$        
17 2028-2029 126,554$      17,271$       13,412$     157,238$        
18 2029-2030 126,554$      17,271$       13,763$     157,589$        
19 2030-2031 126,554$      17,271$       14,123$     157,949$        
20 2031-2032 126,554$      17,271$       14,492$     158,318$        
21 2032-2033 126,554$      17,271$       14,872$     158,697$        
22 2033-2034 126,554$      17,271$       15,261$     159,086$        
23 2034-2035 126,554$      17,271$       15,660$     159,485$        
24 2035-2036 126,554$      17,271$       16,069$     159,895$        
25 2036-2037 126,554$      17,271$       16,490$     160,315$        
26 2037-2038 126,554$      17,271$       16,921$     160,747$        
27 2038-2039 126,554$      17,271$       17,364$     161,189$        
28 2039-2040 126,554$      17,271$       17,818$     161,644$        
29 2040-2041 126,554$      17,271$       18,284$     162,110$        
30 2041-2042 126,554$      17,271$       18,762$     162,588$        
31 2042-2043 126,554$     17,271$       19,253$    163,079$        
32 2043-2044 126,554$     17,271$       19,757$    163,582$        

Cumulative 3,654,888$   498,809$      407,357$   4,561,053$     
Avg. Annual 121,830$      16,627$       13,579$     152,035$        

State/County Projected Tax Shift

 
 



21 
 

EXHIBIT E 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

Regarding 
 

A Municipal Tax Increment Financing Development Program for the District Known As 
The “Mölnlycke Manufacturing Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing 

District”  
 
 Notice is hereby given that the Brunswick Town Council will hold a public hearing on  
 

December 3, 2012,  
at the 

Brunswick Municipal Meeting Room at 16 Station Avenue, Brunswick, Maine, 
The Public Hearing will be at 7:00 p.m.   

  
The purpose of the public hearing is to receive public comments on the designation of the 
proposed Mölnlycke Manufacturing Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing 
District (the “District”) and adoption of a Development Program and Financial Plan for said 
District, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, 
as amended. 
 
The designated municipal development and tax increment financing district consists of 19.4 
acres of property located at Brunswick Landing at the former NAS Brunswick.   
 
All interested persons are invited to attend the public hearing and will be given an opportunity to 
be heard at that time. 
 
 

 



22 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT F 
 

Minutes of Public Hearing and Town Council Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT G 
 

Town Council Order  





Mölnlycke Manufacturing CEA 
 

 

 
 

CREDIT ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT 

between 

THE TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

and 

MÖLNLYCKE MANUFACTURING US, LLC 

 
 

DATED:  December 3, 2012 



 

 i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS .........................................................................................................1 
Section 1.1.  Definitions.......................................................................................................1 
Section 1.2.  Interpretation and Construction. .....................................................................3 

ARTICLE II DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM FUND AND FUNDING REQUIREMENTS .4 
Section 2.1.  Creation of Development Program Fund. .......................................................4 
Section 2.2.  Liens. ...............................................................................................................4 
Section 2.3.  Captured Assessed Value; Deposits into Development Program Fund. .........4 
Section 2.4.  Use of Monies in Development Program Fund. .............................................5 
Section 2.5.  Monies Held in Segregated Account. .............................................................5 

ARTICLE III PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS ...............................................................................5 
Section 3.1.  Company Payments. .......................................................................................5 
Section 3.2.  Failure to Make Payment. ...............................................................................6 
Section 3.3.  Manner of Payments. ......................................................................................6 
Section 3.4.  Obligations Unconditional. .............................................................................6 
Section 3.5.  Limited Obligation. .........................................................................................7 

ARTICLE IV PLEDGE AND SECURITY INTEREST ............................................................7 
Section 4.1.  Pledge of and Grant of Security Interest in Mölnlycke Project Cost 
 Subaccount. .....................................................................................................7 
Section 4.2.  Perfection of Interest. ......................................................................................7 
Section 4.3.  Further Instruments. ........................................................................................8 
Section 4.4.  No Disposition of Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount. ................................8 
Section 4.5.  Access to Books and Records. ........................................................................8 

ARTICLE V DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES .............................................................................8 
Section 5.1.  Events of Default. ...........................................................................................8 
Section 5.2.  Remedies on Default. ......................................................................................9 
Section 5.3.  Remedies Cumulative. ....................................................................................9 
Section 5.4.  Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses. ........................................10 

ARTICLE VI EFFECTIVE DATE, TERM AND TERMINATION ......................................10 
Section 6.1.  Effective Date and Term. ..............................................................................10 
Section 6.2.  Cancellation and Expiration of Term. ...........................................................10 

ARTICLE VII ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE OF MÖLNLYCKE'S INTEREST ............10 
Section 7.1.  Consent to Pledge and/or Assignment. .........................................................10 
Section 7.2.  Pledge, Assignment or Security Interest. ......................................................11 

ARTICLE VIII MISCELLANEOUS .........................................................................................11 
Section 8.1.  Successors. ....................................................................................................11 
Section 8.2.  Parties-in-Interest. .........................................................................................11 
Section 8.3.  Severability. ..................................................................................................11 
Section 8.4.  No Personal Liability of Officials of the Town. ...........................................12 



 

 ii 

Section 8.5.    Counterparts. ...............................................................................................12 
Section 8.6.    Governing Law. ..........................................................................................12 
Section 8.7.    Notices. .......................................................................................................12 
Section 8.8.    Amendments. ..............................................................................................13 
Section 8.9.    Reserved. .....................................................................................................13 
Section 8.10.  Benefit of Assignees or Pledgees. ...............................................................13 
Section 8.11.  Integration. ..................................................................................................13 
Section 8.12.  Reserved. .....................................................................................................13 
Section 8.13.  Dispute Resolution. .....................................................................................13 
Section 8.14.  Tax Laws and Valuation Agreement. .........................................................13 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 Attachment 1 Quarterly Reporting Form for Reporting Full-Time Equivalent Employees 
 
EXHIBITS 

Exhibit 1 Copy of Exhibit A from Development Program – District Map



 

1 
 

THIS CREDIT ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT dated as of December 3, 2012, 
between the Town of Brunswick, Maine (the “Town”), a municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Maine, and Mölnlycke Manufacturing US, LLC (“Mölnlycke” or the 
“Company”), a Delaware limited liability company registered to do business under the laws of 
the State of Maine. 

WITNESSETH THAT 
 

WHEREAS, the Town designated the Mölnlycke Manufacturing Municipal 
Development and Tax Increment Financing District (the “District”) pursuant to Chapter 206 of 
Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, by action of the Town Council at a 
meeting of the Town Council held on December 3, 2012 (the “Vote”) and pursuant to the same 
Vote adopted a development program and financial plan for the District (the “Development 
Program”); and 

WHEREAS, the Town anticipates the approval of the District and the Development 
Program by the Maine Department of Economic and Community Development (the 
“Department”); and 

WHEREAS, during the Vote, the Town Council also approved a credit enhancement 
agreement with Mölnlycke as contemplated by the Development Program in the name of and on 
behalf of the Town; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and Mölnlycke desire and intend that this Credit Enhancement 
Agreement be and constitute the credit enhancement agreement contemplated by and described 
in the Development Program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and in consideration of the 
mutual promises and covenants set forth herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

 
Section 1.1.  Definitions.   

The terms defined in this Article I shall, for all purposes of this Agreement, have the 
meanings herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 

“Act” means chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes and regulations 
adopted thereunder, as amended from time to time. 

“Agreement” shall mean this Credit Enhancement Agreement between the Town and 
Mölnlycke dated as of the date set forth above, as such may be amended from time to time. 

 “Captured Assessed Value” means the amount, stated as a percentage, of the Increased 
Assessed Value that is retained in the District in each Tax Year during the term of the District, as 
specified in Section 2.3 hereof. 



 

2 
 

 
“Commissioner” means the Commissioner of the Department. 

“Current Assessed Value” means the then-current assessed value of the taxable real and 
personal property located in the District as determined by the Town Tax Assessor as of April 1 
of each Tax Year during the term of this Agreement. 

“Development Program” shall have the meaning given such term in the recitals hereto. 

“Development Program Fund” means the Development Program Fund described in the 
Financial Plan section of the Development Program and established and maintained pursuant to 
Article II hereof and 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5227(3)(A).  The Development Program Fund shall 
consist of a Sinking Fund Account (as and if necessary) and a Project Cost Account with two 
subaccounts: the Town Project Cost Subaccount and Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount. 

“District” shall have the meaning given such term in the first recital hereto, which is more 
specifically comprised of approximately 22 acres of real property and identified on Exhibit A to 
the Development Program and any future improvements to such real property, including any 
taxable personal property thereon.  A copy of Exhibit A is attached hereto for convenience. 

“Effective Date of the Development Program” means the date of final approval of the 
Development Program by the Commissioner pursuant to the Act. 

“Financial Plan” means the financial plan described in the “Financial Plan” Section of the 
Development Program. 

“Fiscal Year” means July 1 to June 30 each year or such other fiscal year as the Town 
may from time to time establish.  

“Increased Assessed Value” means, for each Fiscal Year during the term of this 
Agreement, the amount by which the Current Assessed Value for such year exceeds the Original 
Assessed Value.  If the Current Assessed Value is less than or equal to the Original Assessed 
Value in any given Tax Year, there is no Increased Assessed Value in that year. 

“Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount” means that portion of the Project Cost Account of 
the Development Program Fund set aside for Mölnlycke  as described in the Financial Plan 
Section of the Development Program and established and maintained pursuant to Article II 
hereof.  

“Original Assessed Value” means zero dollars ($0), the taxable assessed value of the 
District as of March 31, 2012 [April 1, 2011]. 

“Project Cost Account” means the project cost account described in the Financial Plan 
Section of the Development Program and established and maintained pursuant to Title 30-A 
M.R.S.A. § 5227(3)(A)(1) and Article II hereof. 



 

3 
 

“Property Taxes” means any and all ad valorem property taxes levied, charged or 
assessed against real and taxable personal property located in the District by the Town, or on its 
behalf. 

“Sinking Fund Account” means the development sinking fund account described in the 
Financial Plan Section of the Development Program and established and maintained pursuant to 
Title 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5227(3)(A)(2) and Article II hereof. 

“State” means the State of Maine. 

“Tax Increment Revenues” means that portion of all real and personal property taxes 
assessed and paid to the Town in any Tax Year, in excess of any state, or special district tax, 
upon the Captured Assessed Value.    

“Tax Payment Date” means the later of the date(s) on which property taxes levied by the 
Town are due and payable from owners of property located within the Town, or are actually paid 
to the Town with respect to taxable property located within the District. 

“Tax Year” shall have the meaning given such term in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5222(18), as 
amended, to wit:  April 1 to March 31. 

“Town” shall have the meaning given such term in the first paragraph hereto. 

“Town Project Cost Subaccount” means that portion of the Project Cost Subaccount of 
the Development Program Fund for the District as defined in the Financial Plan Section of the 
Development Program and established and maintained according to Article II hereof. 

Section 1.2.  Interpretation and Construction. 

In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires: 

(a) The terms “hereby,” “hereof,” “hereto,” “herein,” “hereunder” and any similar 
terms, as used in this Agreement, refer to this Agreement, and the term “hereafter” means after, 
and the term “heretofore” means before, the date of delivery of this Agreement. 

(b) Words importing a particular gender mean and include correlative words of every 
other gender and words importing the singular number mean and include the plural number and 
vice versa. 

(c) Words importing persons mean and include firms, associations, partnerships 
(including limited partnerships), trusts, corporations and other legal entities, including public or 
governmental bodies, as well as any natural persons. 

(d) Any headings preceding the texts of the several Articles and Sections of this 
Agreement, and any table of contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, shall be 
solely for convenience of reference and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement, nor shall 
they affect its meaning, construction or effect. 



 

4 
 

(e) All approvals, consents and acceptances required to be given or made by any 
signatory hereto shall not be withheld unreasonably. 

(f) All notices to be given hereunder shall be given in writing and, unless a certain 
number of days is specified, within a reasonable time. 

(g) If any clause, provision or Section of this Agreement shall be ruled invalid by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity of such clause, provision or Section shall not affect 
any of the remaining provisions hereof. 

ARTICLE II 
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM FUND AND FUNDING REQUIREMENTS 

 
Section 2.1.  Creation of Development Program Fund. 

Within sixty (60) days after the Effective Date of the Development Program, the Town 
shall create and establish a segregated fund in the name of the Town designated as the 
“Mölnlycke Manufacturing Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District 
Fund” (hereinafter the “Development Program Fund”) pursuant to, and in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of, the Development Program and 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5227(3).  The 
Development Program Fund shall consist of a Project Cost Account that is pledged to and 
charged with the payment of project costs as outlined in the Financial Plan of the Development 
Program and as provided in 30-A M.R.S.A.§ 5227(3)(A)(1), and, if necessary, may also consist 
of a Sinking Fund Account that is pledged to and charged with the payment of Town 
indebtedness, if any, as outlined in the Financial Plan of the Development Program and as 
provided in 30-A M.R.S.A § 5227(3)(A)(2).  The Project Cost Account shall also contain two 
subaccounts designated as the “Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount” and the “Town Project Cost 
Subaccount.”  The Development Program Fund is pledged to and charged with the payment of 
costs in the manner and priority provided in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 5227(3)(B) and as set forth in 
Section 3.1(b) below.       
 

Section 2.2.  Liens. 

The Town shall not create any liens, encumbrances or other interests of any nature 
whatsoever, nor shall it hypothecate Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount described in Section 2.1 
hereof or any funds therein, other than the interest in favor of Mölnlycke hereunder in and to the 
amounts on deposit; provided, however, that nothing herein shall prohibit the creation of 
property tax liens on property in the District in accordance with and entitled to priority pursuant 
to Maine law. 

Section 2.3.  Captured Assessed Value; Deposits into Development Program Fund.  

(a) Each year during the term of this Agreement, commencing with the Tax Year 
following the Tax Year in which the Effective Date of the Development Program falls (i.e., 
starting in year 2 of the District) and continuing thereafter for the following nineteen (19) years 
for a total of twenty (20) years (collectively the “CEA Years”), the Town shall retain in the 



 

5 
 

District one hundred percent (100%) of the Increased Assessed Value as Captured Assessed 
Value.   
 

(b) For each of the CEA Years, the Town shall deposit into the Development 
Program Fund contemporaneously with each payment of Property Taxes during the term of this 
Agreement an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of that portion of the property tax 
payment constituting Tax Increment Revenues.  Mölnlycke’s percentage share of the Tax 
Increment Revenues shall be tied to the number of full-time equivalent (“FTE”) employees on 
Mölnlycke’s payroll who are eligible for employment benefits.  Each year, Mölnlycke shall 
report the Company’s FTE employment count to the Town on a quarterly basis on the form 
attached to this Agreement as Attachment 1.  Each January during the CEA Years, the Town 
shall calculate the average number of FTE employees reported by Mölnlycke during the prior 
calendar year in order to determine Mölnlycke’s percentage share of the Tax Increment 
Revenues for following Tax Year.  Using this calculation, the Town shall allocate an amount of 
Tax Increment Revenues so deposited in the Development Program Fund to the Mölnlycke 
Project Cost Subaccount of the Project Cost Account as follows:  (i) a base minimum of thirty-
five percent (35%) of the Tax Increment Revenues each year; and (ii) an additional one-half 
percent (0.5%) of the Tax Increment Revenues for each additional FTE job created by 
Mölnlycke in excess of forty-five (45) FTE jobs.  Regardless of the number of FTE employees 
employed by Mölnlycke, the Tax Increment Revenues reimbursement to Mölnlycke shall not 
exceed fifty-five percent (55%) of the Tax Increment Revenues in any one year.    

 (c) Except as provided in Section 3.1(b) hereof, for each of the CEA Years, the Town 
shall deposit the remaining Tax Increment Revenues not deposited to the Mölnlycke Project Cost 
Subaccount of the Project Cost Account into the Sinking Fund Account to the extent and in such 
amounts necessary to finance the costs for any municipal projects undertaken by the Town and 
financed with bonded indebtedness, and otherwise to the Town Project Cost Subaccount of the 
Project Cost Account for use by the Town to fund the cost of Town projects as described in the 
Development Program. 

Section 2.4.  Use of Monies in Development Program Fund. 

All monies in the Development Program Fund that are allocable to and/or deposited in 
Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount shall in all cases be used and applied to fund fully the 
Town's payment obligations to Mölnlycke as described in Articles II and III hereof.    

Section 2.5.  Monies Held in Segregated Account. 

All monies required to be deposited with or paid into Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount 
under the provisions hereof and the provisions of the Development Program, and any investment 
earnings thereon, shall be held by the Town for the benefit of Mölnlycke. 

ARTICLE III 
PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS 

 
Section 3.1.  Company Payments.    



 

6 
 

(a) The Town agrees to pay Mölnlycke, within thirty (30) days following the date the 
Tax Payment Date, all amounts then on deposit in Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount.   

 
(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, if, with respect to any 

Tax Payment Date, any portion of the property taxes assessed against real or personal property 
located in the District remain unpaid, because of a valuation dispute or otherwise, the property 
taxes actually paid with respect to such Tax Payment Date shall, first, be applied to taxes due on 
account of Original Assessed Value; and second, shall constitute payment of Property Taxes with 
respect to Increased Assessed Value, to be applied first to payment in full of the applicable Town 
percent share of the Tax Increment Revenues for the year concerned and deposited into the 
Sinking Fund and/or the Town Project Cost Subaccount in accordance with Article II hereof; and 
third, to the extent of funds remaining, to payment of Mölnlycke’s share of the Tax Increment 
Revenues for the year concerned, to be deposited into Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount.     

Section 3.2.  Failure to Make Payment. 

(a) In the event the Town should fail to, or be unable to, make any of the payments at 
the time and in the amount required under the foregoing provisions of this Article III including in 
the event that the amount deposited into Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount is insufficient to 
reimburse Mölnlycke for the full amount due to Mölnlycke under this Agreement, the amount or 
installment so unpaid shall continue as a limited obligation of the Town, under the terms and 
conditions hereinafter set forth, until the amount unpaid shall have been fully paid.  Mölnlycke 
shall have the right to initiate and maintain an action to specifically enforce the Town’s 
obligations hereunder, including without limitation, the Town’s obligation to deposit Tax 
Increment Revenues to Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount and its obligation to make payment 
out of Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount to Mölnlycke. 

(b) Any payment from the Town to Mölnlycke not paid within thirty (30) days 
following the Tax Payment Date, as specified in Section 3.1 above, shall be subject to payment 
of interest by the Town at the same rate applicable to refunds of abated property taxes.  The 
provision in this section 3.2(b) of an interest rate on late payments by the Town shall not limit 
Mölnlycke’s right under section 5.2 below to collect or require immediate payment of past due 
Town payments.    

Section 3.3.  Manner of Payments. 

The payments provided for in this Article III shall be paid directly to Mölnlycke at the 
address specified in Section 8.7 hereof in the manner provided hereinabove for Mölnlycke’s own 
use and benefit by check drawn on the Town.  

Section 3.4.  Obligations Unconditional. 

Subject to compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the obligations of 
the Town to make the payments described in this Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof 
shall be absolute and unconditional, and the Town shall not suspend or discontinue any payment 
hereunder or terminate this Agreement for any cause, other than by court order or by reason of a 
final judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction that the District is invalid or otherwise 
illegal. 



 

7 
 

Section 3.5.  Limited Obligation. 

 The Town’s obligations of payment hereunder shall be limited obligations of the Town 
payable solely from Tax Increment Revenues pledged therefor under this Agreement.  The 
Town’s obligations hereunder shall not constitute a general debt or a general obligation or charge 
against or pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of the Town, the State of Maine, or of 
any municipality or political subdivision thereof, but shall be payable solely from that portion of 
Tax Increment Revenues payable to Mölnlycke hereunder, whether or not actually deposited into 
Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount in the Development Program Fund.  This Agreement shall 
not directly, indirectly or contingently obligate the Town, the State of Maine, or any other Town 
or political subdivision to levy or to pledge any form of taxation whatever therefor or to make 
any appropriation for their payment, excepting the pledge of the Tax Increment Revenues 
established under this Agreement.  

ARTICLE IV 
PLEDGE AND SECURITY INTEREST 

 
Section 4.1.  Pledge of and Grant of Security Interest in Mölnlycke Project Cost 
Subaccount. 

In consideration of this Agreement and other valuable consideration and for the purpose 
of securing payment of the amounts provided for hereunder to Mölnlycke by the Town, 
according to the terms and conditions contained herein, and in order to secure the performance 
and observance of all of the Town’s covenants and agreements contained herein, the Town does 
hereby grant a security interest in and pledge Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount described in 
Section 2.1 hereof and all sums of money and other securities and investments therein to 
Mölnlycke.   

Section 4.2.  Perfection of Interest. 

(a) To the extent deemed necessary or desirable by Mölnlycke, the Town will at such 
time and from time to time as reasonably requested by Mölnlycke establish the Mölnlycke 
Project Cost Subaccount described in Section 2.1 hereof as a segregated fund under the control 
of an escrow agent, trustee or other fiduciary selected by Mölnlycke so as to perfect Mölnlycke’s 
interest therein.  The cost of establishing and monitoring such a fund (including the cost of 
counsel to the Town with respect thereto) shall be borne exclusively by Mölnlycke.  In the event 
such a fund is established under the control of a trustee or fiduciary, the Town shall cooperate 
with Mölnlycke in causing appropriate financing statements and continuation statements naming 
Mölnlycke as pledgee of all such amounts from time to time on deposit in the fund to be duly 
filed and recorded in the appropriate state offices as required by and permitted under the 
provisions of the Maine Uniform Commercial Code or other similar law as adopted in the State 
of Maine and any other applicable jurisdiction, as from time to time amended, in order to perfect 
and maintain the security interests created hereunder. 

(b) In the event Mölnlycke requires the establishment of a segregated fund in 
accordance with this Section 4.2, the Town’s responsibility shall be expressly limited to 



 

8 
 

delivering the amounts required by this Agreement to the escrow agent, trustee or other fiduciary 
designated by Mölnlycke.  The Town shall have no liability for payment over of the funds 
concerned to Mölnlycke by any such escrow agent, trustee or other fiduciary, or for any 
misappropriation, investment losses or other losses in the hands of such escrow agent, trustee or 
other fiduciary.  Notwithstanding any change in the identity of Mölnlycke’s designated escrow 
agent, trustee or other fiduciary, the Town shall have no liability for misdelivery of funds if 
delivered in accordance with Mölnlycke’s most recent written designation or instructions 
actually received by the Town. 

Section 4.3.  Further Instruments. 

The Town shall, upon the reasonable request of Mölnlycke, from time to time execute 
and deliver such further instruments and take such further action as may be reasonable and as 
may be required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement; provided, however, that no such 
instruments or actions shall pledge the credit of the Town; and provided further that the cost of 
executing and delivering such further instruments (including the reasonable and related costs of 
counsel to the Town with respect thereto) shall be borne exclusively by Mölnlycke.   

Section 4.4.  No Disposition of Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount. 

Except as permitted hereunder, the Town shall not sell, lease, pledge, assign or otherwise 
dispose, encumber or hypothecate any interest in Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount and will 
promptly pay or cause to be discharged or make adequate provision to discharge any lien, charge 
or encumbrance on any part thereof not permitted hereby. 

Section 4.5.  Access to Books and Records. 

(a)   All books, records and documents in the possession of the Town relating to the 
District, the Development Program, this Agreement and the monies, revenues and receipts on 
deposit or required to be deposited into Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount shall at all 
reasonable times and upon reasonable notice be open to inspection by Mölnlycke, its agents and 
employees.  

 
(b) All non-confidential  books records and documents in the possession of 

Mölnlycke relating to the number and length of service of Mölnlycke’s FTE employees shall at 
all reasonable times and upon reasonable notice be open to inspection by Town, its agents and 
employees. 

ARTICLE V 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

 
Section 5.1.  Events of Default. 

Each of the following events shall constitute and be referred to in this Agreement as an 
“Event of Default”: 



 

9 
 

(a) Any failure by the Town to pay any amounts due to Mölnlycke when the same 
shall become due and payable; 

(b) Any failure by the Town to make deposits into Mölnlycke Project Cost 
Subaccount as and when due; 

(c) Any failure by the Town or Mölnlycke to observe and perform in all material 
respects any covenant, condition, agreement or provision contained herein on the part of the 
Town or Mölnlycke to be observed or performed, which failure is not cured within thirty (30) 
days following written notice thereof; and 

(d) If a decree or order of a court or agency or supervisory authority having 
jurisdiction in the premises of the appointment of a conservator or receiver or liquidator of, any 
insolvency, readjustment of debt, marshaling of assets and liabilities or similar proceedings, or 
for the winding up or liquidation of the Town’s affairs shall have been entered against the Town 
or the Town shall have consented to the appointment of a conservator or receiver or liquidator in 
any such proceedings of or relating to the Town or of or relating to all or substantially all of its 
property, including without limitation the filing of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy by the 
Town or the failure by the Town to have an involuntary petition in bankruptcy dismissed within 
a period of ninety (90) consecutive days following its filing or in the event an order for release 
has been entered under the Bankruptcy Code with respect to the Town. 

Section 5.2.  Remedies on Default. 

Subject to the provisions contained in Section 8.13, whenever any Event of Default 
described in Section 5.1 hereof shall have occurred and be continuing, the nondefaulting party, 
following the expiration of any applicable cure period, shall have all rights and remedies 
available to it at law or in equity, including the rights and remedies available to a secured party 
under the laws of the State of Maine, and may take whatever action as may be necessary or 
desirable to collect the amount then due and thereafter to become due, to specifically enforce the 
performance or observance of any obligations, agreements or covenants of the nondefaulting 
party under this Agreement and any documents, instruments and agreements contemplated 
hereby or to enforce any rights or remedies available hereunder. 

Section 5.3.  Remedies Cumulative. 

Subject to the provisions of Section 8.13 below concerning dispute resolution, no remedy 
herein conferred upon or reserved to any party is intended to be exclusive of any other available 
remedy or remedies but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition 
to every other remedy given under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law, in equity 
or by statute.  Delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any Events of 
Default to insist upon the strict performance of any of the covenants and agreements herein set 
forth or to exercise any rights or remedies upon the occurrence of an Event of Default shall not 
impair any such right or power or be considered or taken as a waiver or relinquishment for the 
future of the right to insist upon and to enforce, from time to time and as often as may be deemed 
expedient, by injunction or other appropriate legal or equitable remedy, strict compliance by the 



 

10 
 

parties hereto with all of the covenants and conditions hereof, or of the rights to exercise any 
such rights or remedies, if such Events of Default be continued or repeated. 

 
Section 5.4.  Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses. 

Subject to the provisions of Section 8.13 below concerning dispute resolution and the 
Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association, in the event the Town or 
Mölnlycke should default under any of the provisions of this Agreement, and the nondefaulting 
party shall require and employ attorneys or incur other expenses or costs for the collection of 
payments due or to become due or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any 
obligation or agreement on the part of the Town or Mölnlycke herein contained, the defaulting 
party shall, on demand therefor, pay to the nondefaulting party the reasonable fees of such 
attorneys and such other reasonable costs and expenses so incurred by the non-defaulting party. 

ARTICLE VI 
EFFECTIVE DATE, TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
Section 6.1.  Effective Date and Term. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, this Agreement is conditioned 
upon receipt of the Commissioner’s unconditional approval of the Town’s designation of the 
District and adoption of the Development Program.  Following execution and delivery of this 
Agreement, the Agreement shall not be or become binding and enforceable until receipt of such 
unconditional approval.  Upon receipt of such approval, this Agreement shall remain in full force 
from the Effective Date of the Development Program and shall expire upon the later of the 
twenty-first (21st) anniversary thereof or the payment of all amounts due to Mölnlycke hereunder 
and the performance of all obligations on the part of the Town hereunder unless sooner 
terminated pursuant to Section 3.4 or any other applicable provision of this Agreement.  

Section 6.2.  Cancellation and Expiration of Term. 

At the acceleration, termination or other expiration of this Agreement in accordance with 
the provisions of this Agreement, the Town and Mölnlycke shall each execute and deliver such 
documents and take or cause to be taken such actions as may be necessary to evidence the 
termination of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE VII 
ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE OF MÖLNLYCKE'S INTEREST 

 
Section 7.1.  Consent to Pledge and/or Assignment. 

The Town hereby acknowledges that Mölnlycke may from time to time pledge and assign 
its right, title and interest in, to and under this Agreement as collateral for financing 
improvements by or on behalf of Mölnlycke within the District, although no obligation is hereby 
imposed on Mölnlycke to make such assignment or pledge.  Recognizing this possibility, the 
Town does hereby consent and agree to the pledge and assignment of all Mölnlycke's right, title 



 

11 
 

and interest in, to and under this Agreement and in, and to the payments to be made to 
Mölnlycke hereunder, to third parties as collateral or security for financing such development, on 
one or more occasions during the term hereof.  The Town agrees to execute and deliver any 
assignments, pledge agreements, consents or other confirmations required by such prospective 
pledgee or assignee, including without limitation recognition of the pledgee or assignee as the 
holder of all right, title and interest herein and as the payee of amounts due and payable 
hereunder.  The Town agrees to execute and deliver any other documentation as shall confirm to 
such pledgee or assignee the position of such assignee or pledgee and the irrevocable and 
binding nature of this Agreement and provide to such pledgee or assignee such rights and/or 
remedies as Mölnlycke or such pledgee or assignee may reasonably deem necessary for the 
establishment, perfection and protection of its interest herein.  Mölnlycke shall be responsible for 
the Town’s necessary and reasonable costs of counsel with respect to any such pledge or 
assignment. 

Section 7.2.  Pledge, Assignment or Security Interest. 

Except as provided in Section 7.1 hereof, and except for the purpose of securing 
financing for improvements by or on behalf of Mölnlycke within the District, Mölnlycke shall 
not transfer or assign any portion of its rights in, to and under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of the Town.     

ARTICLE VIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Section 8.1.  Successors. 

In the event of the dissolution, merger or consolidation of the Town or Mölnlycke, the 
covenants, stipulations, promises and agreements set forth herein, by or on behalf of or for the 
benefit of such party shall bind or inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns thereof from 
time to time and any entity, officer, board, commission, agency or instrumentality to whom or to 
which any power or duty of such party shall be transferred. 

Section 8.2.  Parties-in-Interest. 

Except as herein otherwise specifically provided, nothing in this Agreement expressed or 
implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, firm or corporation other 
than the Town and Mölnlycke any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement, 
it being intended that this Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Town and 
Mölnlycke. 

Section 8.3.  Severability. 

In case any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall, for any reason, be held 
to be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this 
Agreement and this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid 
provision had not been contained herein. 



 

12 
 

Section 8.4.  No Personal Liability of Officials of the Town. 

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of the Town contained herein shall be 
deemed to be a covenant, stipulation or obligation of any present or future elected or appointed 
official, officer, agent, servant or employee of the Town in his or her individual capacity, and 
neither the Town commissioners nor any official, officer, employee or agent of the Town shall 
be liable personally with respect to this Agreement or be subject to any personal liability or 
accountability by reason hereof. 

Section 8.5.  Counterparts. 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when so 
executed and delivered, shall be an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute but 
one and the same Agreement. 

Section 8.6.  Governing Law. 

The laws of the State of Maine shall govern the construction and enforcement of this 
Agreement. 

Section 8.7.  Notices. 

All notices, certificates, requests, requisitions or other communications by the Town or 
Mölnlycke pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and 
shall be deemed given when mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

If to the Town: 
 
Town of Brunswick 
28 Federal Street 
Brunswick, Maine 04011 
Attention: Town Manager 
 

With a copy to: 
 

Bernstein Shur 
100 Middle Street 
P.O. Box 9729 
Portland, Maine  04104-5029 
Attn: Joan Fortin, Esq. 
 

If to Mölnlycke: 
 
 Mölnlycke Manufacturing US, LLC 
 192 Admiral Fitch Avenue 
 Brunswick, ME 04011 
 Attention:  James W. Detert 



 

13 
 

 
Either of the parties may, by notice given to the other, designate any further or different 

addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates, requests or other communications shall be 
sent hereunder. 

Section 8.8.  Amendments. 

This Agreement may be amended only with the concurring written consent of both of the 
parties hereto.    

Section 8.9.  Reserved.    

Section 8.10.  Benefit of Assignees or Pledgees. 

The Town agrees that this Agreement is executed in part to induce assignees or pledgees 
to provide financing for improvements by or on behalf of Mölnlycke within the District and 
accordingly all covenants and agreements on the part of the Town as to the amounts payable 
hereunder are hereby declared to be for the benefit of any such assignee or pledgee from time to 
time of Mölnlycke's right, title and interest herein. 

Section 8.11.  Integration. 

This Agreement completely and fully supersedes all other prior or contemporaneous 
understandings or agreements, both written and oral, between the Town and Mölnlycke relating 
to the specific subject matter of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. 

Section 8.12.  Reserved. 

Section 8.13.  Dispute Resolution. 

In the event of a dispute regarding this Agreement or the transactions contemplated by it, 
the parties hereto will use all reasonable efforts to resolve the dispute on an amicable basis.  If 
the dispute is not resolved on that basis within sixty (60) days after one party first brings the 
dispute to the attention of the other party, then either party may refer the dispute for resolution by 
one arbitrator in an arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association in 
accordance with its Commercial Arbitration Rules, and judgment on the award rendered by the 
arbitrator may be entered in any Maine state court having jurisdiction.  Any such arbitration will 
take place in Brunswick, Maine or such other location as mutually agreed by the parties.  The 
parties acknowledge that arbitration shall be the sole mechanism for dispute resolution under this 
Agreement.  This arbitration clause shall not bar the Town’s assessment or collection of property 
taxes in accord with law, including by judicial proceedings, including tax lien thereof. 

 
Section 8.14.  Tax Laws and Valuation Agreement.  

The parties acknowledge that all laws of the State now in effect or hereafter enacted with 
respect to taxation of property shall be applicable and that the Town, by entering into this 
Agreement, is not excusing any non-payment of taxes by Mölnlycke.  Without limiting the 



 

14 
 

foregoing, the Town and Mölnlycke shall always be entitled to exercise all rights and remedies 
regarding assessment, collection and payment of taxes assessed on Mölnlycke's property.  In 
addition, the Development Program makes certain assumptions and estimates regarding 
valuation, depreciation of assets, tax rates and estimated costs.  The Town and Mölnlycke hereby 
covenant and agree that the assumptions, estimates, analysis and results set forth in the 
Development Program shall in no way (a) prejudice the rights of any party or be used, in any 
way, by any party in either presenting evidence or making argument in any dispute which may 
arise in connection with valuation of or abatement proceedings relating to Mölnlycke’s property 
for purposes of ad valorem property taxation or (b) vary the terms of this Agreement even if the 
actual results differ substantially from the estimates, assumptions or analysis. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and Mölnlycke have caused this Agreement to be 

executed in their respective corporate names and their respective corporate seals to be hereunto 
affixed and attested by the duly authorized officers, all as of the date first above written. 

 

WITNESS:     TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 

________________________________ By:_________________________________ 
Name: Gary L. Brown 
Its Town Manager 

 

WITNESS:     MÖLNLYCKE MANUFACTURING US, LLC 

________________________________ By:___________________________ 
Name:  James W. Detert 
Its ____________________ 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 

QUARTERLY REPORTING FORM FOR REPORTING FULL-TIME  
EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES 

 
[to be inserted] 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



-Draft- 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
November 5, 2012 

6:15 P.M. – Executive Session 
7:00 P.M. – Regular meeting  

Municipal Meeting Room 
Brunswick Station 
16 Station Avenue 

 
Councilors Present: Chair Joanne T. King, W. David Watson, Benjamin J. Tucker, Suzan 

Wilson, John M. Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Margo H. Knight, Sarah 
E. Brayman, and Benet Pols 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: Gary Brown, Town Manager; Debra Blum, Executive Administrative 

Assistant to Town Manager; Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and 
Development; Denise Clavette, Business Development Manager; Paul 
Perzanoski, Superintendent of Schools; Russ Wrede, Police 
Department; and TV video crew.  

 
Chair King called the meeting to order and asked the Town Manager for roll call. 
 
Executive session – Personnel matter to discuss the Town Manager’s evaluation per 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A) and consultation with legal counsel per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E) 
 
Councilor Watson moved,  Councilor Tucker seconded, to go into executive session to 
discuss a Personnel Matter regarding the Town Manager’s evaluation per M.R.S.A. 
§405(6)(A) and for consultation with legal counsel per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E).  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas.  
 
Meeting resumed at 7:05 p.m. 
 
Chair King resumed the meeting and asked for the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Public Comment:  
 
Julie Pease, 13 Chestnut Road, spoke against corporations’ rights and asked the Council to 
support a resolution for a constitutional amendment. 
 
Joseph Rivera, 90 Echo Road, spoke against outside corporations, PACs and unions and also 
supported a constitutional amendment. 
 
Elizabeth Sokoloff, 5 High Street, asked the Council to consider formulating an inclement 
weather policy for town events. 
 
Jane Brox, 21 Page Street, voiced safety, landscaping and pedestrian concerns with the new 
train station parking lot on Union Street. 



Brunswick Town Council 
Minutes – November 5, 2012 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Correspondence:   
 
Councilor Perreault asked if the staff could do a history of the McKeen/Baribeau intersection 
regarding safety issues to see if it’s something the Council needs to take further. 
 
Councilor Brayman introduced the new artwork in the Council Chamber, and asked questions 
about the evolution of the new Union Street parking lot, which Manager Brown answered. 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  None 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Council Committee Updates  
 
Reports were given on the Master Plan Implementation Committee, its ad hoc parking 
committee, and the CIP committee. 
 
Manager Brown reported on the arrival of the Downeaster on November 1, 2012. 
 
(b) Election reminder 
  
Manager Brown spoke regarding this item. 
 
(c) Brunswick designated as a Bicycle Friendly Community at the Bronze level 
 
Rich Cromwell, President of the Merrymeeting Wheelers, presented a sign and certificate to 
Anna Breinich, and announced that Brunswick was the only town in Maine to receive this 
designation. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
112. The Town Council will hear public comments on an application for Special 

Amusement License, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 

Special Amusement 
AKI, INC 
D/B/A: AKI, INC       Kevin Savage 
94 Maine Street 

 
Chair King opened the public hearing; hearing no comments, she closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to approve the Special 
Amusement License for AKI, INC, located at 94 Maine Street. The motion carried with 
nine (9) yeas. 
 
 



Brunswick Town Council 
Minutes – November 5, 2012 
Page 3 
 

 
 

113. The Town Council will hear public comments regarding proposed zoning 
ordinance text and map amendments requested by Midcoast Regional 
Redevelopment Authority for Brunswick Landing, and will take any appropriate 
action.  (Manager) 

 
Chair King opened the public hearing; hearing no comments, she closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilor Pols asked a question, to which Anna Breinich responded. 
 
Councilor Pols moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adopt Zoning Ordinance text 
and map amendments requested by Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority for 
Brunswick Landing.  The motion passed with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(Copies of the adopted zoning ordinance text, the adopted map and table, and a memo from 
the Planning Director will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
114. The Town Council will hear public comments regarding the “Resolution 

Amending the 2012-13 Budget Appropriating $174,500 from the Unassigned 
Balance of the General Fund to Fund the School Department’s Facilities Master 
Plan – Phase II,” and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

 
Chair King opened the public hearing. 
 
Rich Ellis, 231 Adams Road and School Board member, explained this request. 
 
Chair King closed the public hearing, as there were no comments from the public. 
 
Manager Brown gave background information on this request and explained the process. 
 
Councilor Pols asked a question, to which Chair King and Manager Brown responded. 
 
Councilor Favreau asked a question, to which Chair King responded. 
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Knight and Councilor Watson asked questions, which 
Superintendent Perzanoski answered. 
 
Councilor Wilson commented on this item and asked a question, to which Mr. Perzanoski 
responded. 
 
Chair King commented on this item and advised the School Department to televise all 
workshops. 



Brunswick Town Council 
Minutes – November 5, 2012 
Page 4 
 

 
 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
115. The Town Council will consider conditionally accepting Columbia Avenue from 

Moore Avenue to the Town’s section of Columbia Avenue, about 2,300 feet, as a 
Town Road, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

 
Manager Brown spoke about this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Knight seconded, to conditionally accepting 
Columbia Avenue from Moore Avenue to the Town’s section of Columbia Avenue, 
about 2,300 feet, as a Town Road.  The motion passed with nine (9) yeas. 
 
116. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for November 19, 2012, 

to adopt an ordinance to exempt active duty military from paying excise tax on 
vehicles, and will take any appropriate action. (Chair King and Councilor 
Watson) 

 
Chair King spoke on this item. 
 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to set a public hearing for 
November 19, 2012, to adopt an ordinance to exempt active duty military from paying 
excise tax on vehicles.  The motion passed with nine (9) yeas. 
 
117.   The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for November 19, 2012, 

on amendments to the General Assistance Ordinance Maximums, to be enacted 
on an emergency and regular basis, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager) 

 
Councilor Knight moved, Councilor Brayman seconded, to set a public hearing for 
November 19, 2012, on amendments to the General Assistance Ordinance Maximums, to 
be enacted on an emergency and regular basis.  The motion passed with nine (9) yeas. 
 
118. The Town Council will discuss the MMA Legislative Policy Committee 

recommendations for legislation for the upcoming session, and will determine if 
any Council action is necessary.  (Councilor Pols) 

 
Councilor Pols presented this item. 
 
Councilor Tucker commented on this item, and Councilor Pols responded. 
 
Councilor Wilson commented on this item. 
 
Councilor Watson asked a question, to which Councilor Pols responded. 
 



Brunswick Town Council 
Minutes – November 5, 2012 
Page 5 
 

 
 

 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of October 15, 2012 
 

(b) Approval of Games of Chance and Beano for the Knights of Columbia 
Council 1947   

 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to approve the consent 
agenda. The motion carried with nine (9) yeas.  
 
Executive session –Economic development per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Tucker seconded, to go into executive session to 
discuss economic development per M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C).  The motion passed with nine 
(9) yeas. 
 
The meeting went into executive session and no action was taken. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 
Debra L. Blum 
Executive Administrative Assistant to the Town Manager 
November 5, 2012 
 

  
Date of Approval 

 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 


	Binder1.pdf
	mr a on line only
	mr b c d no

	119 yes
	119 a School Master Plan Memo with attachments
	119 b 2012-13 Budget Amendment
	119 October 19 memo regarding phase 2
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	120 yes
	120 cover memo to exchange agreement Decembe 15 2012
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	120 Exchange Agreement FINAL 121115
	FINAL 11/08/12
	AGREEMENT FOR THE EXCHANGE OF REAL ESTATE

	121 yes
	121 drug free zone_20121114100059
	121 title30-Asec3253
	122 yes
	123 no
	ca a yes
	ca a Nov 5 2012 min
	122 TIF summary memo.pdf
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	122 all TIF.pdf
	122 yes
	122 TIF summary memo
	TOWN OF BRUNSWICK

	122 1 Development Program (Molnlycke Brunswick) (11-15-12)
	Mölnlycke Health Care and Mölnlycke Manufacturing
	II.      Development Program Narrative
	A. Costs and Sources of Revenues
	B. Public Indebtedness


	122 2 Exhibit C Assessor_s Certificate
	122 3 CEA with Molnlycke (draft 11-14-12) (2)
	ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS
	Section 1.1.  Definitions.
	Section 1.2.  Interpretation and Construction.

	ARTICLE II DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM FUND AND FUNDING REQUIREMENTS
	Section 2.1.  Creation of Development Program Fund.
	Section 2.2.  Liens.
	Section 2.3.  Captured Assessed Value; Deposits into Development Program Fund.
	Section 2.4.  Use of Monies in Development Program Fund.
	Section 2.5.  Monies Held in Segregated Account.

	ARTICLE III PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS
	Section 3.1.  Company Payments.
	Section 3.2.  Failure to Make Payment.
	Section 3.3.  Manner of Payments.
	Section 3.4.  Obligations Unconditional.
	Section 3.5.  Limited Obligation.

	ARTICLE IV PLEDGE AND SECURITY INTEREST
	Section 4.1.  Pledge of and Grant of Security Interest in Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount.
	Section 4.2.  Perfection of Interest.
	Section 4.3.  Further Instruments.
	Section 4.4.  No Disposition of Mölnlycke Project Cost Subaccount.
	Section 4.5.  Access to Books and Records.

	ARTICLE V DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES
	Section 5.1.  Events of Default.
	Section 5.2.  Remedies on Default.
	Section 5.3.  Remedies Cumulative.
	Section 5.4.  Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses.

	ARTICLE VI EFFECTIVE DATE, TERM AND TERMINATION
	Section 6.1.  Effective Date and Term.
	Section 6.2.  Cancellation and Expiration of Term.

	ARTICLE VII ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE OF MÖLNLYCKE'S INTEREST
	Section 7.1.  Consent to Pledge and/or Assignment.
	Section 7.2.  Pledge, Assignment or Security Interest.

	ARTICLE VIII MISCELLANEOUS
	Section 8.1.  Successors.
	Section 8.2.  Parties-in-Interest.
	Section 8.3.  Severability.
	Section 8.4.  No Personal Liability of Officials of the Town.
	Section 8.5.  Counterparts.
	Section 8.6.  Governing Law.
	Section 8.7.  Notices.
	Section 8.8.  Amendments.
	Section 8.10.  Benefit of Assignees or Pledgees.
	Section 8.11.  Integration.
	Section 8.12.  Reserved.
	Section 8.13.  Dispute Resolution.
	Section 8.14.  Tax Laws and Valuation Agreement.






